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Project Data:

Project ID: HMHD 1-21

Project Name: Business Plan Update

Population: Current population of about 40, 351

SOI/Boundaries: Within the City of Calexico EXHIBIT A

About the District:

e Formed as a hospital district in 1947

o Filed for Bankruptcy in 1995

e Hospital closed in 1998

e Hospital was abandoned but the district was not dissolved

e Name was changed in 2009

e Staff include a Chief Executive, Board Secretary, Account, Legal Counsel, and Marketing Director
e $975,000 in annual revenue from the allocation of the general 1% property tax

Contact:

Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
601 Heber Avenue
Calexico, CA 92231

Website: www.heffernanmemorial.org
E-Mail: info@heffernanmemorial.org
Office: 760-357-6522

Office Hours:

Monday 9:00 am-12:00 pm
Tuesday-Thursday 9:00 am-3:00 pm

Fridays Closed

Governing Body:

5- Member Board of Directors elected by resident voters
Meetings are held on the 2" and 4™ Wednesday of each month at 5:30

HMHD EQ Report for the 09/23/21 LAFCO Hearing 2



REPORT

Summary of LAFCO Action/Direction

The Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District (HMHD) has been before your
Commission several times and the Executive Officer has provided periodic information

and updates.

The following is a summarized history of the Commissions direction/action:

05/24/18: On May 24, 2018 the Commission directed the District provide a
detailed 5-year plan.

12/13/18: Received update on the preparation of a 5-year strategic plan.

03/2019: Received March 2019 report update

05/2019: Received May 2019 report update

08/2019: Received August 2019 report update

01/15/20: Received updated 5-Year Business Plan

04/2021: Received updated Business Plan

09/2021 Business Plan Update to the Commission

District Compliance with LAFCO Resolution 2020-02

On April 23, 2020, your Commission adopted Resolution #2020-02 with the
following direction: EXHIBIT B

Direct that HMHD provide annual updates to their plan, for the next two
years then every five years thereafter. EXHIBIT C

The most recent version of the Business Plan is April 2021 and is attached.
The next Business Plan update will be due in April 2022.

Direct that HMHD not to subsidize the City of Calexico in any
fashion unless and until approval from LAFCO is first obtained.

This direction is based on the City of Calexico’s request for HMHD to fund its
ambulance program. The Commission on May 24, 2018, directed HMHD not to
subside the City of Calexico for several reasons including the fact that the city
did not need to provide its own ambulance program as there was a countywide
program that the city could have but chose not to participate in.

HMHD EO Report for the 09/23/21 LAFCO Hearing 3




C. Direct that HMHD provide its audited financial report to LAFCO within 30
days of its completion.

EXHIBIT D

The most recent audited financial report completed by George J. Woo for the
year ending June 30, 2020, is attached.

d. Direct that HMHD provide its budget to LAFCO within 30 days of

adoption.

The districts 2021-2022 budget is attached.

EXHIBIT E

1. The Business/Strategic Plan as Submitted
The Heffernan Memorial Healthcare Districts Board of Directors approved a Strategic/Business Plan
on April 14, 2021.
HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE (APRIL 2021)
STRATEGIC DEVELOP COMMUNITY ENHANCE ACCESS TO CARE SUSTAIN FINANCIAL
GOALS HEALTH AWARENESS HEALTH
STRATEGIES 1. Deliver 4 health fairs per 1) Continue Lo fund local health 1) Collaborate with
year each focusing on high initiatives to enhance access to Foundations and healthcare
priority healthcare needs care. partners to obtain grants 1o
(i.e., COVID-19 Prevention 2) Collaborate with City, County. drive mission and vision.
and Treatment, Chronic and local health partners to 2) Collaborate with local and
Disease Management, establish a full-service 24/7 state government to bring
Nutrition, Weight Urgent Care. healthcare funds to
Management). 3) Collaborate with healthcare Calexico.
2. Collaborate with City of partners to bring more healthcare 3) Work with grant programs
Calexico and local healthcare services and providers 1o to run high quality and
partners 1o improve Calexico. efficient programs.
healthcare communication, 4) Collaborate with County and 4) Meet annual budget
3. Deliver a minimum of 2 local health providers to increase projections.
townhall meetings per year COVID-19 testing and COVID-
to engage the public in 19 vaccination efforts
District initiatives. 5) Complete modernization of
4, Continue to fund local health District Building to house
initiatives to promote health communitly health programs,
and health awareness. health fairs. and health education
(2021).
6) In collaboration with payors and
local health providers, develop
cull center Lo tacility access 1o
care (2023).
GRANT 1) AAA Meal program. 3) Fit and Healthy Center.
PROGRAMS 2) Rosa’s Plan Food Inc. meal 4} Vo Neighborhood Medical
program. Clinic.

Strategic Plan adopted by the Heffernan Board of Directors on April 14, 2021
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. GRANTS FOR THE 2021-2022 FISCAL YEAR

The districts 2021-2022 budget includes $300,000 allocated to fund grants.

The Area Agency on Aging Senior Meal grant program and the Fit and Healthy Center grant
program as shown in the Strategic Plan expired on June 30, 2021.

The district has two active grant programs listed below. These two agreements expire in
June of 2022.

Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic EXHIBIT F
Term: July 1, 2021- June 30, 2022

Grant Total: $150,000

Service: Medical care services to approximately 400 all age persons

Rosa’s Plane Food EXHIBIT G
Term: July 1, 2021- June 30, 2022

Grant Total: $150,000

Service: Home Delivered meals to approximately 75 seniors five days per week

. 400 MARY STREET., CALEXICO BUILDING PROJECT

The district developed an RFP during the fall of 2020 to modernize a building at 400 Mary
Street., in Calexico. The building will be used to house community health programs, health
fairs, health education, and house the district offices.

The demolition of the site was completed in 2021 and the district is in the process of
obtaining permits to start construction.

URGENT CARE CENTER RFP

The district is in the process of developing an RFP to open an urgent care center in Calexico.
The RFP is expected to be completed during the month of September. The 400 Mary Street
site is a potential location for the center.

Summary/Determinations:

G.C. § 56430 (a) states; the Commission shall conduct a service review of the municipal services
provided in the county or other appropriate area designated by the commission. The
commission shall include in the area designated for service review the county, the region, the
sub region, or any other geographic area as its appropriate for an analysis of the service or
service to be reviewed and shall prepare a written statement of its determination with respect
to but not limited to the following:
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1. Growth and population projections for
the affected area

The estimated service area population is
40,351,

2. Present and planned capacity of public
facilities, adequacy of public services, and
infrastructure needs or deficiencies
including needs or deficiencies related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water,
unincorporated communities within or
contiguous to the sphere of influence.

Building Project: 400 Mary Street

The district developed an RFP during the
fall of 2020 to modernize a building at
400 Mary Street, Calexico. The building
will be used to house community health
programs, health fairs, health education,
and house the district offices.

The demolition of the site was completed
in 2021 and the district is in the process
of obtaining permits to start construction.
Urgent Care Center:

The district is in the process of developing
an RFP to open an urgent care in Calexico.
The RFP is expected to be completed
during the month of September. The
district has identified 400 Mary Street as
a potential location for the center.

3. Financial ability of agencies to provide
services.

The 2021-2022 budget is attached to this
report as Exhibit C.

The most recent audited financial report
completed by George J. Woo for the year
ending June 30, 2020, is attached to this
report as Exhibit E.

4, Accountability for community service
needs, including governmental structure
and operational efficiencies.

The district has a five-member Board of
Directors accountable to its residents. The
Board meets on the 2" and 4"
Wednesday of each month at 5:30pm.
The meetings are broadcasted live, and
public participation is encouraged.

V. Analysis and Recommendation by the EO

Upon review of the districts business plan and financials it is the recommendation of the Executive
Officer to continue to monitor the district and provide updates to the Commission as needed.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

Given the review of the districts business and strategic plan, it is the recommendation of the
Executive Officer to:

OPTION #1: = APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER AS SET FORTH

HEREIN.
A. Direct that HMHD provide the next annual update to their plan by April 2022
and then every five years thereafter.
B. Direct that HMHD not to subsidize the City of Calexico in any
fashion unless and until approval from LAFCO is first obtained.
C. Direct that HMHD provide its audited financial report to LAFCO within 30
days of its completion.
D. Direct that HMHD provide its budget to LAFCO within 30 days of
adoption.
Attachments:
EXHIBIT A: Sphere of Influence/Boundary Map
EXHIBIT B: LAFCO Resolution #2020-02
EXHIBIT C: Business Plan
EXHIBIT D: Audited Financial Statements ending June 30, 2020
EXHIBIT E: 2021-2022 Budget
EXHIBIT F: Grant with Vo Medical
EXHIBIT G: Grant with Rosas Plane Food
CC: HMHD
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EXHIBIT A

Sphere of Influence/Boundary Map
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EXHIBIT B

LAFCO Resolution #2020-02



ARG

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

RESOLUTION # 2020-02

RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF IMPERIAL MAKING A
DETERMINATION ON THE
HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (HMHD 1-15)

RESOLVED, by the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of Imperial, State of
California, that

WHEREAS, the Commission, during the May 24, 2018 hearing directed the District, via
Resolution #2018-12 to prepare and submit a Business Plan; and

WHEREAS, the District has prepared and submitted a Business Plan; and
WHEREAS, the Executive Officer of LAFCO has reviewed and prepared a report on the

District including recommendations thereon, and presented said report to the Commission during
the April 23, 2020 hearing;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT DETERMINED, ORDERED AND RESOLVED as follows:

I Direct that HMHD provide annual updates to their plan, for the next two years then every
five years thereafter, with the first update being due by April 2021 and the 2™ update
due by April 2022.

. Direct that HMHD not subsidize the City of Calexico in any fashion unless and until approval
from LAFCO is first obtained.

. Direct that HMHD provide its audited financial report to LAFCO within 30 days of adoption.

Iv. Direct that HMHD provide its budget to LAFCO within 30 days of adoption.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 23rd day of April 2020 by the Local Agency Formation Commission
and the following roll call votes:

AYES: Froelich, Jackson, Kelley, Castillo, West
NAYS: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

JasoW
Ty Lol

Jurg'ﬁmﬁergé'r, Executive Officer
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Business Plan
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HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BUSINESS PLAN

ADVANCING HEALTHCARE THROUGH COMMUNITY,
COLLABORATION, AND INNOVATION

APRIL 2021 UPDATE
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L. Foreword

Serving the healthcare needs of the Calexico community is a privilege Heffernan Memorial
Healthcare District (HMHD) takes seriously. Healthcare is on a constant state of flux. In order to
achieve the best possible health outcomes, our District must continually seek and employ
innovative healthcare delivery models, ensure efficient and high-quality care, engage our
community, and collaborate with our healthcare partners.

HMHD’s 2019-2024 Strategic Plan is guided by a new Mission, Vision, and guiding principles.
It is a comprehensive, long-range road map that takes a calculated approach to transform the way
we do business to ensure delivery of high quality and efficient healthcare, meet current and
future healthcare challenges, and improve overall community health. Our plan is anchored on our
commitments for quality, safety, transparency, leadership, and community.

HMHD’s 2019-2024 Strategic Plan was modified in early 2020 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.
At such time all grant programs, with exception of the Area Agency on Aging Meal Program,
were given notice and discontinued.

Throughout most of 2020, HMHD collaborated with the Department of Public Health and with
local healthcare providers to educate the public on COVID-19 implications, to provide personal
protective equipment to the Calexico community, and to help support local healthcare providers
with needed supplies.

HMHD delayed their Request for Proposals for healthcare grants for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 due
to the COVID-19 Pandemic. The Request for Proposals was completed and posted on the Fall of
2021. Six (6) Proposals were received by the deadline. Only 3 of the six proposals were
approved for grants.

HMHD’s Strategic Plan for 2019-2024 was updated in April of 2021 (see Exhibit A). The
Business Plan that follows includes some modifications that were made to the initial Business
Plan to address community needs.

Board President Chief Executive
Gloria Grijalva Tomas Virgen
April 14, 2021 April 14, 2021
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II. Executive Summary:

Our Mission

To be the area’s leading healthcare organization by being a good steward of its finances, a
catalyst for the delivery of new and enhanced healthcare services, a consistent supporter of
health and wellness, and a reliable healthcare resource for District residents

The Company Management

HMHD is headquartered in Calexico, California and is a 501(c)(3) organization (not-for-profit).
The District is governed by a publicly elected five (5) member board. In 2018, HMHD hired a
Chief Executive to run operations, manage grant programs, and to carry out the Board’s strategic
plan.

Our Services

HMHD is focused on implementing and sponsoring programs that increase access and awareness
to healthcare services and education for the Calexico community by practicing the following
tenets: 1) partnering successfully with other healthcare providers to enhance the quality and
breadth of healthcare services available to District residents. 2) Promoting, supporting, and
providing healthcare services related primarily to disease prevention, health education, and
wellness. 3) Selectively providing financial support for healthcare initiatives that are consistent
with the District’s vision and mission. 4) Maximizing the value derived from each taxpayer
dollar spent through the careful planning and implementation of all Board approved initiatives
and; 5) conservatively managing its assets and resources to ensure the long-term financial
viability of the organization.

The Market

Healthcare across the nation has suffered due to the disproportion of patients seeking care to
available providers. To make matters worse, areas such as Calexico suffer from high
unemployment rates, large numbers of uninsured and underinsured patients, and strong
competition from physicians, pharmacies, and hospitals on both sides of the border with Mexico.

Competitive Advantages

HMHD has competitive advantages in the Calexico community. HMHD has a strong financial
position which gets supplemented each year with $975,000 from property tax revenues. This
makes the district viable and sustainable.

Another competitive advantage is that HMHD has community support. Calexico residents are
very loyal. The reality that HMHD is supported with community tax dollars to further elevate the
standard of care and to improve access to care solidifies HMHD’s position in their market.
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Financial Projections

HMHD has assets in excess of $7.2 Million (see Exhibit B). In addition, the district receives an
additional $975,000.00/year from property tax revenues. HMHD will continue to fund local
community health programs via grants, provided these programs align with HMHD’s mission
and vision.

During FY 2020, due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, HMHD gave notice to their then active grant
programs and discontinued (due to COVID restrictions) all programs with the exception of the
Area Agency on Aging Meal Program. The Area Agency on Aging Meal plan expires on June
30, 2021.

During the Fall of FY 2020, HMHD produced a Request for Proposals (RFP) to modernize a
building owned by the District. The cost for the modernization project bordered $2.3 million
dollars. The modernized building will be used to house community health programs, health fairs,
health education, and house the District offices.

During the Fall of 2020, HMHD produced an RFP to fund programs that aligned with HMHD’s
mission and vision, and addressed COVID-19 restriction. HMHD budgeted $500,000 for the
grant cycle. Six (6) Proposals were received, out of which three (3) were approved for grants.

Between September 2020 and March 2021, HMHD made some modifications to their previous
plans to build and operate a Rural Health Clinic (or Federally Qualified Health Center) and an
Urgent Care Center. Rather than compete with local healthcare providers, HMHD has began to
process to develop an RFP to collaborate with those interested in opening an Urgent Care Center
in Calexico. The District recognizes that this endeavor will deplete most of their cash reserves,
but strongly believes that Calexico will most benefit from an Urgent Care withing city limits.

HMHD is on track with their current strategic plan. The plan was developed with community
involvement and once the plan is executed, it will have a profound effect in shaping the
healthcare outcomes of Calexico residents.
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III.  Situational Analysis
Company

HMHD is located in Calexico, CA, a border town 120 miles east of San Diego in Imperial
County. HMHD is a healthcare district that closed its acute care hospital in 1998. Since that time
HMHD has consisted of a publicly elected five (5) member Board with no healthcare facilities.
The HMHD receives approximately $975,000.00 per year from property tax revenues. The bulk
of those funds is used to fund grants to healthcare programs in the Calexico community.

In August of 2018, HMHD hired a District Manager. The District Manager was tasked with
development of a strategic plan, management of operations, and ensuring compliance with
LAFCO. Furthermore, the new District Manager was tasked with developing a Board Orientation
Program and Board Education sessions to prepare for newly elected board members and to
prepare the way for the new strategic plan. On July 2019 the District Manager title was changed
to Chief Executive.

During the last quarter of 2018 and the first quarter of 2019, HMHD conducted strategic plan
workshops. Community leaders, healthcare leaders, and community member were invited. The
takeaways from those sessions resulted in the 2019-2024 Strategic Plan. During this same time
frame, Board Directors held elections for officers, new officers were seated and four of the five
Directors attended the Association of California Healthcare Districts Board Education
Conference.

During the last quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, HMHD conducted strategic plan
workshops to update their current strategic plan. The impact of COVID-19 was considered.
These workshops led to need changes in HMHD’s Strategic and Business Plan.

The emphasis of the workshops held on the first quarter of 2021 was on Governance, Board
member roles, and strategic plan modifications and preparations. The following graph led the
way to a new direction, and to a new sense of loyalty and ownership towards community health.

Accountadle

Efficient [ﬂ Trm/wpm
Flowing

Rulesof Law
e Good
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Inclusive c

On April 14, 2021, the HMHD Board approved the new Strategic Plan. This plan included a
retrenchment strategy and has redefined HMHDs direction. The new strategic plan focuses on
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developing community health awareness, improving access to care, and maintaining financial
health to sustain their mission and vision.

With the new strategic plan, HMHD will venture into developing an RFP to find a suitable
partner to establish an Urgent Care Center in Calexico. Due to the nature of such endeavor,
HMHD recognizes that this project will take most of 2021 and perhaps the first two (2) quarters
of 2022 to complete. HMHD will hold special meetings in the community to obtain feedback.
Providers, County Emergency Medical Services, and Local Leaders will be consulted for
assistance in this new direction.

During the strategic plan workshop, a SWOT Analysis was conducted, the results are outlined
below:

Strengths Weaknesses

Financial position Public perception of not doing enough
Property Tax Revenue Support Few Providers in community
Community Support No hospital in District

Leadership No District owned clinic

Political Support Proximity to border

Opportunities Threats

Access to care not satisfied by competitors LAFCO Resolution

Collaboration with local healthcare partners Mexico Healthcare Access

Grant possibilities due to disparities/air quality Mexico Healthcare/Medication costs

The SWOT Analysis recognized that a strong financial position was meaningless unless
improvements to access to care become self-evident. HMHD may have community and political
support, but unless the Board of Directors and the new leadership align with the new mission and
vision imperatives, HMHD could fail. The new Board and Leadership committed to realign
themselves with the new direction and have been working relentlessly to ensure Calexico
residents get the healthcare access and services they deserve.

Competitors/Local Providers

Navigating in today’s healthcare arena is no easy task. Rules constantly change, reimbursements
get cut, and healthcare disparities exist. Furthermore, competitors are continually looking to gain
market share.
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Calexico currently has four (4) major competitors in the local healthcare community. Two of
them are Rural Health Clinics, one of them is a Federally Qualified Healthcare Center, and the
other is a Medical Group office that offers a wide variety of services. The fifth competitor is the
Mexicali healthcare system. This system offers quality care, low costs, and easy access.

Calexico has approximately eighteen (17) providers sites. Twelve (12) of these are private
physician offices, two (2) Rural Health Clinics, one (1) Federally Qualified Healthcare Center,
and two (2) Behavioral Health Clinics.

Customers

HMHD’s primary customers are Calexico residents. Many of these residents suffer from old age,
chronic diseases, and lack of information or awareness. HMHD Customers include competitors
and collaborators. In the Calexico market, competitors and collaborators offer necessary services
that should be preserved. Without these, access to care would suffer.

Calexico has an abundance of patients that are elderly, underinsured or uninsured, are hard of
hearing, have poor or no transportation, and do not have the patience to sit and wait in an office
share two-three hours for an appointment. These patients demand the same kind of time and
consideration that insured patients receive. Thus, an opportunity for a new Clinic model that
offers a patient centric model exists.

Collaborators

HMHD has many collaborators. The local hospitals and Clinicas de Salud del Pueblo are good
examples of collaborators. HMHD constantly collaborates with these healthcare entities to
promote health. Thus, it is imperative that strong connections with these entities are forged and
maintained.

HMHD also has four (4) collaborators in the form of grant recipients. These collaborators, help
promote HMHD’s mission and vision throughout our community. Current grant recipients are
Area Agency on Aging Meal Program, Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic, Rosa’s Plane Food
Meal Program, and Fit and Healthy Center.

Description of services offered by collaborators
Area Agency on Aging Meal Program

The Area Agency on Aging is providing meals to Calexico Seniors that without HMHD’s
support would not have access to such meals. Seniors that benefit from this program are unable
to prepare meals for themselves or lack resources to pay for meals.

Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic

HMHD has partnered with the Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic to offer COVID-19 related care
and follow-ups to up-to 600 Calexico uninsured Patients. Most of these patients suffer from
chronic conditions which have been exacerbated by their exposure to COVID-19. This program
provides chronic care management and up to 4 follow ups per patient.
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Rosa’s Plane Food Meal Program

Rosa’s Plane food provides meals for forty-seven (47) Calexico residents that previously
qualified for conventional “meals-on-wheels” type programs. Thanks to this grant, 47 residents
are enjoying much needed meals. Since inception of this program, HMHD has received over 20
new requests for inclusion in this program.

Fit and Healthy Center

Fit and Healthy Center childhood obesity in Calexico. The Fit and Healthy Center provides
education and training to Calexico kids and their parents. The program includes exercise and
nutritional support.

Climate

The Healthcare Climate in Calexico is a competitive and politically driven one. This is further
accentuated by a poor payer-mix in the community, constant patient complaints of long wait
times and poor access to care; as well as healthcare provider complaints of poor reimbursement,
noncompliance and not having enough time to address chronic conditions.

HMHD comes from a strong financial and community support position. Market entry barriers
exist, but at this moment do not pose a threat for a new Urgent Care Center. It is, however,
expected that competitors will react once patient volumes fluctuate. It is the sole intent of
HMHD to add services and not to take any away. HMHD’s success prognosis is a positive one.
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IV. Vision, Mission and Core Values

Vision Statement

To be the healthcare provider of choice for Calexico Residents.

...................................................................................................................

Mission Statement

To be the area’s leading healthcare organization by being a good steward of its finances, a
catalyst for the delivery of new and enhanced healthcare services, a consistent supporter of
health and wellness, and a reliable healthcare resource for District residents.

Guiding Principles

1. Commitment: We commit to developing high quality healthcare services to support our
community's health and wellness needs.

2. Integrity: We adhere to the highest ethical standards in all of our decisions.

3. Excellence: We adhere to the highest standards of performance and seek excellence through

continuous quality improvement.

4. Transparency: We create an atmosphere of trust by being transparent, consistently applying
the same methodology to our decision-making processes, and by consistently having open
dialogues with our constituents.

5. Collaboration: We believe that partnerships and collaborative community efforts bring
strength to our district. We engage our partners to fulfill our mission and vision for
excellence in healthcare delivery in Calexico.

V.  Organizational Structure

10
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..................................................................................................................

HMHD Officers and Board of Directors

HMHD is governed by a publicly elected five (5) member board of directors. The HMHD
Officers and Board of Directors are responsible for the governance and fiscal health of the
organization. They seek to collaborate with healthcare partners and community stakeholders,

pursue new healthcare opportunities and initiate innovation in the greater medical community.

The officers and Board of Directors are committed to making a lasting impact on Calexico’s
healthcare system and to fulfill the organization’s Mission and Vision.

v

Gloria Grijalva Norma Apodaca Rodolfo Valdez

Board Chair Board Vice Chair Board Treasurer

Raul R. Urena Hector Martinez

Board Secretary Director

ses

11
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Leadership and Management Team

The Officers and Board of Directors have built a management team led by Chief Executive
Tomas Virgen, an experienced healthcare administrator and binational healthcare consultant. Mr.
Virgen oversees district operations, grant program management, and service line development.
Mr. Virgen also oversees and directs the district management team.

VI. HMHD Sector and Market Analysis

Geographic Overview

Calexico is the southernmost city in the Imperial County and it shares a border with Mexicali,
Baja California, Mexico. With a population of approximately 40,351 (2017), Calexico is the
second largest city in the Imperial County. Mexicali, HMHD’s neighbor to the south, has a
population of 1,059,896 (2018) and is the second largest city in the State of Baja California
(https://datausa.io/profile/geo/calexico-ca/).
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Demographic Overview

Calexico is unique in the Imperial County due to its proximity to the Mexican border. Calexico is
the gateway for thousands of Mexicali residents that cross the border frequently. Many of these
border crossers come to and through Calexico to work, shop, or study. That dynamic goes both
ways. Many Calexico residents also cross the border southbound frequently to seek lower cost
healthcare, food, and entertainment. Thus, Calexico and Mexicali have a certain level of synergy
and codependence.

Mexicali has a growing population. The latest estimates show a population of 1,059,896 and
growing. Whereas Calexico’s population has remained flat for the past 3 years with an average
growth rate of 0.5% per year. Although Calexico’s population has not grown significantly over
recent years, its economy is highly dependent on the Mexicali traffic. Thankfully, Mexicali has
seen an increase in their middle class which translates into a stronger economy that will in turn
benefit Calexico and the surrounding areas.

Calexico Population from 2010-2017 (https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/calexicocitycalifornia)

Year Population Growth Annual Growth Rate
2017 40,351 141 0.35%
2016 40,210 239 0.60%
2015 39,971 214 0.54%
2014 39,757 268 0.68%
2013 39,489 186 0.47%
2012 39,303 289 0.74%
2011 39,014 340 0.88%
2010 38,674 11,565 3.62%

Economic Overview (Data obtained from https://datausa.io/profile/geo/calexico-
ca/)

Calexico’s economy has remained fairly flat for the past five years. However, the growth south
of the border continues to support the Calexico economy. This continuous growth does support a
positive economic outlook for Calexico.

The following graphs provide data demographics on the Calexico Economy. Data on
employment, industry, median household income, highest paying jobs, lowest paying jobs,
wages by race and ethnicity in common jobs, poverty by race, property values and healthcare
coverage provide greater insight into Calexico economics.
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Employment by Occupations in Calexico, Ca
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Highest Paying Jobs
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Wage by Race and Ethnicity in Common Jobs
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Health Care Coverage:
Uninsured 14.8%
Medicaid 40.3% Non-Group 8.07%
Medicare 5.19% Military or VA 0.416%

Employer Coverage 31.3%

w
=
ES

|

=1
=

/

¥

Spencing Value
I

=
&

[

5%

0%
2013 A ot

Employer Medicaid Medicare || Military or VA Non-Group Uninsured
ploy :

Calexico Medical Economy

Access to Care
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Healthcare is in growing demand as the population ages and Baby Boomers enter later stages of
life. These later stages often require more frequent and more intensive healthcare services. Along
with this trend, Calexico has more lives over 65 years of age per capita than any other city in the

County.

An additional factor to the rising demand for healthcare services in Calexico is the increasing

number of residents without health insurance. The creation of the Affordable Care Act in 2014
did bring some relief to Calexico families since more than 34% of households have incomes less
than $25,000 per year. This Act created more insured patients, however, underinsured. What it
didn’t do, is increase the number of available physicians to address the influx of patients seeking

health care.

Other identified barriers to access to care in Calexico are transportation, communication, prompt

appointment times, knowledge deficits, physical and cognitive disabilities, a shortage of

providers, information and non-compliance.

17



HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE DISTRIC | BUSINESS PLAN

Healthcare Professional and Service Supply

While the number of healthcare jobs has increased over the past decade, it does not meet current
or future demands. Imperial Valley College is one of the primary sources for Registered Nurses,
Paramedics, Emergency Medical Technicians, and Certified Nurse Assistants in the County.
Although many of these professionals are locals, they leave the Imperial County as soon as they
graduate having a greater impact in local economics.

There are currently no medical schools or medical residency programs in the Imperial County.
The closest Residency program is in Yuma, Arizona at Yuma Regional Medical Center. The
closest medical school is the UCSD School of Medicine in San Diego.

Much of Imperial County is designated as a medically underserved area. The County has a
shortage of medical providers, in particular those that provide primary care and mental health
services. In 2013, there was one primary-care physician for every 4,410 Imperial county
residents, compared to one for every 1,270 residents statewide. There is one mental health
provider for every 930 County residents, compared to one for every 360 residents in California
overall. There are also a limited number of dentists to serve the local population: one for every
3,140 County residents, while in the rest of the state there are one for every 1,260 residents.

In Calexico, it is a reality that health workforce supply falls short of what is needed to ensure
access to basic primary care, preventive and specialty services. These deficits are compounded
by an aging healthcare workforce and new demands for medical services generated by
population growth, population aging and insurance coverage expansions.

Calexico Based Physicians/Clinics

Calexico currently has 12 Private Physician Practices, one Group owned practice with rotating
providers, two Rural Health Clinics (one owned by El Centro Regional Medical Center, and the
other by Pioneers Memorial Healthcare District), and one Federally Qualified Health Center
(owned by Clinicas de Salud del Pueblo). These clinics provide primary care and sporadic
specialty care. In addition, Imperial County Behavioral Services has two (2) sites in Calexico
serving the Community’s Behavioral Health needs.

Imperial County Hospitals

Imperial County has two hospitals, El Centro Regional Medical Center located in El Centro and
Pioneers Memorial Healthcare District located in Brawley. These hospitals anchor the healthcare
delivery system in the County. Each has their main campus and each has two rural health clinics.
Both hospitals own and operate clinics in Calexico. Both hospitals are designated Trauma level
IV. Major trauma and any conditions requiring subspecialties are transferred to San Diego
hospitals or Desert Regional Medical Center in Palm Springs.

Chronic Disease

Chronic diseases such as heart disease, stroke, cancer, and diabetes are the leading causes of
death and disability in the United States. Chronic diseases account for 70 percent of all deaths in
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the U.S., or 1.7 million each year. These diseases also cause major limitations in daily living for
nearly one out of 10 Americans, or about 25 million people. Chronic diseases are among the
most common, costly and preventable of all health problems.

In addition to access to healthcare and lack of healthcare resources, Calexico faces the challenges
brought on by a large number of residents with chronic disease. Although Calexico may seem to
have a similar patient to clinician ratio to the Imperial County, it still falls way below the state
average ratio. It is worthy of note to state that Calexico has the oldest and sickest population in
the Imperial County. If you couple this with uninsured and underinsured patients, we end up with
a greater challenge and burden for care. Finding providers that will spend more time with our
patients in an environment of scarce resources is a challenge. This creates an opportunity for a
new type of medical delivery model that can thrive in Calexico’s healthcare environment.

The prevalence of chronic disease in Calexico follows the same trend as the County. Heart
disease, cancer, stroke, diabetes, hypertension, kidney disease, chronic liver disease, tuberculosis
and asthma rates are too high to ignore. In too many cases, residents suffer from multiple chronic
diseases further augmenting their need for high quality care.

Diabetes is the fifth leading cause of death in Imperial County. In 2014, nearly 16 percent of
adults reported ever being diagnosed with diabetes (excluding gestational diabetes), compared to
8.9 percent statewide (CHIS).

Heart disease accounted for 17 percent of all deaths in Imperial County on average in 2012-2014,
while stroke caused nearly 6 percent of deaths in this County.

In 2014, 28 percent of adults in Imperial County reported having high blood pressure, and 63
percent of those reported taking medication for high blood pressure (CHIS).

In 2012-2014, on average 21 percent of Imperial County deaths were due to cancer.

COVID-19 Pandemic

The impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic has amplified the need for healthcare access in Calexico.
The pandemic has not only tested the current medical community’s capacity for volumes, but
also that of local Emergency Rooms. Furthermore, the financial impact of COVID-19 continues
to afflict the entire Imperial County. It is evident that collaboration between local healthcare
leaders, providers, and influencers is paramount.
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VII. Goals, Strategies, and Tactics

Goal 1: Develop Community health awareness
Strategy: Lead progress toward being a healthier community.
Tactics

1. Deliver four (4) health fairs per year each focusing on a high priority healthcare need.

2. Collaborate with local health partners by participating in local health movements via
health fair participation and/or financial support.

3. Collaborate with local health providers to identify trends in healthcare needs and engage
their active participation in community’s health.

4. Collaborate with local health partners and community leaders to promote district
movements.

Goal 2: Enhance Access to Care
Strategy: Partner with Healthcare Provider to Develop an Urgent Care.
Tactics

1. Collaborate with Community, healthcare partners, and community leaders to obtain
support for Urgent Care

2. Develop Urgent Care RFP

3. Collaborate with Urgent Care Partner to implement a healthcare delivery model to
incentivize quality, efficiency, and care.

4. Engage physicians and community members to become champions of access to care.

Strategy: Recruit providers needed by Calexico Community
Tactics

1. Collaborate with local hospitals and clinics to recruit high need providers (i.e. Primary
Care and Geriatrics).

2. Collaborate with Aging physicians to promote practice succession.

3. Collaborate with Independent Physician Associations to engage in recruitment of needed
talent.

Strategy: Develop Community Call Center/Navigation program to facilitate access to care.
Tactics

1. Collaborate with local graduate and undergraduate students to gather and translate data.

2. Collaborate with County and Payors to help fund or augment program and to develop

system.

Create healthcare directory

4. Collaborate with hospitals and local linkages programs to participate and develop
communication trees.

W
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5. Base call center/navigation program at HMHD (2023).

Goal 3: Maintain financial health to fulfill mission
Strategy: Raise funds via grants and create new service lines to fund mission initiatives.
Tactics

1) Collaborate with State Officials and local health partners to bring nceded grant dollars
fund community health programs.

2) Collaborate with payers to fund joint initiatives.

3) Collaborate with local leaders to improve local economy.

4) Partner with Healthcare Entity to establish Urgent Care by 2022.

VIII. Measurement

HMHD places high priority on the measurement, tracking, and reporting of its goals and
programs. HMHD will operate strategically and tactically to ensure efficient high-quality care.
We believe that in order to improve a process, you measure it. Thus, dashboards have been
created to track goals and projects. These dashboards will be tracked and reported to the Board
and public on a quarterly basis. By measuring and evaluating the impact of HMHD goals and
projects, the Board of Directors will be able to monitor compliance and intervene when
necessary.

Furthermore, the Board of directors serve on advisory committees to provide input and support.
These leaders require a focus on measurement and assessment. HMHD will consider its efforts a
success when reduction in healthcare disparities and reduction in identified gaps is evident.

IX. Funding and Potential Revenue Sources

HMHD, as with all other healthcare districts, is funded by its increment of the City’s annual
property tax revenues. These tax revenues are utilized by the HMHD Board to benefit the health
and well-being of the citizens of the community. The funds are either donated to local health-
based organizations that make funding requests, or the funds are used by HMHD to implement
new healthcare initiatives.

HMHD receives approximately $975,000 per year from the property tax revenues. As of April
14, 2021, HMHD financial position includes $5,663,653.54 in savings & checking, plus other
assets that bring up the total asset value to $7,254,006.79.

Another potential revenue source comes from grants. In collaboration with local health partners,
HMHD is actively in search of grants to expand current programs and address healthcare gaps in
the Calexico Community.
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In addition to the above revenue sources, HMHD has begun modernization of a property owned
in Calexico. There are two interested parties that are entertaining entering into a long term lease
agreement. Said property will produce revenues in excess of $50,000 per year after expenses.

X. Summary and Conclusion

The Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District (HMHD) has been and is operating with a clear
intention and realistic expectation of being a proactive resource for the healthcare needs of
Calexico residents. In conjunction with all those who are already providing quality service within
our district, HMHD will strive to further advance a culture of prevention and a focus on
wellness. Through collaboration and innovation, and the support of those who believe in and
support the HMHD mission and vision, HMHD will be a change agent that opens a dynamic
space with cooperative dialogue and behaviors that will lead to creative healthcare innovation
and quality outcomes.

HMHD believes the strength and transparency of our dashboards will create a new sense of
awareness that will engage providers, community members, and healthcare leaders to open
dialogues pertaining to healthcare needs, and to continually strive to produce higher quality
outcomes in our community.

HMHD believes in the strength of a partnership to develop an urgent care to further improve
access to care in Calexico. HMHD will adopt a philosophy that is patient centric. HMHD will
develop incentives to motivate clinicians and staff to provide prompt individualized high-quality
care that is second to none.

Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District accepts the healthcare challenges of today and
tomorrow. In that endeavor, HMHD commits to putting their patient needs first, to provide high
quality outcomes that bring value and improve the quality of lives of those that reside in the
Calexico community.
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HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
APRIL 14, 2021.

CURRENT ASSETS:

SUN COMMUNITY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
REGULAR SAVING ACCOUNT 652.66
CHECKING ACCOUNT 3,162,988.21

TOTAL SUN COMMUNITY BANK

MECHANICS BANK (RABOBANK) ACCT.

WELLS FARGO CHECKING ACCT.

FIRST FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
TOTAL CD / CHECKING/SAVING ACCT.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
CALEXICO MEGAPARK,LLC { Purchase Land-Deposit)

PREPARED By: ROSARIO VIZCARRA
4/14/2021.

3,163,640.87

307,494.70

1,932,588.51

259,929.46

$ 5,663,653.54

$ 500,000.00



6:43 PM

04/14/21
Accrual Basis

Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

Balance Sheet
As of April 14, 2021

Apr 14, 21
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1010 - Cash in bank - SCFCU 3,162,988.21
1030 - Cash in bank - SCFCU Savings 652.66
1050 - Cash in bank - Mechanics Bank 307,494.70
1052 - Cash in bank - First ICUnion 259,929.46
1055 - Cash In bank - Wells Fargo 1,932,588.51
Total Checking/Savings 5,663,653.54
Other Current Assets
1250 - Deposits payable - Land 500,000.00
Total Other Current Assets 500,000.00
Total Current Assets 6,163,653.54
Fixed Assets
1600 - Land 142,750.00
1605 - Building and improvements 999,646.44
1610 - Office equipment 64,920.53
1700 - Accumulated depreciation (116,963.72)
Total Fixed Assets 1,090,353.25
TOTAL ASSETS 7,254,006.79
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity
3020 - Retained earnings 6,873,341.77
Net Income 380,665.02
Total Equity 7,254,006.79
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 7,254,006.79

Page 1
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HEFFERNAN \* MEMORIAL

HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
“Working for a Healthy Calexico”

Information of services using our Website, Social Media
T.V., Radio and Printed Newsletter

HEFFERNAN | , MEMORIAL

HEALTHCARE i DISTRICT
“Working tor a Heallhy Galexica"

HEFFERNAN e MEMORIAL

HEA LTHCERE DISTRICT
‘Working for a Healthy Calexico™

Heffernan Memorial Healthcare
District is delivering free
Face Masks, Hand Sanitizer, Gloves
and COVID19 information
to Calexico residents.
Hours: Monday - Friday
from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
District office:
601 Heber Ave, Calexico
For more information call:

760.357.6522

El Distrito de Salud Heffernan Memaorial
esta entregando gratuitamente
Cubre Bocas, Gel Sanitizante, Guantes
informacion sobre el COVID19
a residentes de Calexico
Horario: Lunes a Viernes
de 9:00 a.m. a 3:00 p.m.

District oficina del Distrito HWHD:
601 Avenida Heber Calexico
Para mas informacién llame al:

760.357.6522

Hetiuy

T
] e

| HEALTHCARE

Visit our website:
www.heffernanmemorial.org

Visite nuestra pagina de internet:
www.heffernanmemorial.org

Newsletter delivered to every household in Calexico every 3 months
in English and Spanish using the Water Bill system

601 Heber Avenue HEFFERNAN - 601 Heber Avenue
Calexico, CA 92231 HEALTHCARE S 3 Calexico, CA 92231

— < a 760.357.6522 i - } 760.357.6522
Buenas Noticias I[188 B - tp 4 website Good News! : websile

R e . www.lieffernanmemorial org - — 2 i www.heffornanmemorial.org
Primavera 2021 - _ tnformatton@heftornanmemoriat org Newslelter Spring 2021 3 Information@heflornapmemorial.arg

A nuesira comunidad de Calexico' El Distrilo da Salud Heffernan Mamorial otorgd 2 subvencionas a provee-
dores médicos locales para mejorar |a salud de nuesira comunidad. EI programa "FIT & HEALTHY" es un
pragrama sin fines de lucro enfocado en reducir |a obesidad infantil en nuesira camunidad a base del
ejercicio, clases de nulricion y asesona medica Para mas informacién llame al: 760.585.1010

El programa "LA SALUD Y EL BIENESTAR” etendera a 800 residenles da Calexico sin seguro médica Los
sarviclos proporcionados en el Programa Médico no tendrén coslo para los pacientas atendidos e Incluiran el
tralamiento de afecciones médicas crénicas como dlabeles, hipertension, entermedad de las arlerias coro-
naries, obesidad, asma / EPOC, cancer y COVid 19 Para mas Informacién llame al: 760.554 5941

El programa “Meals on Wheels" mayares También 47 perso-
nas mayores a Iravés del programa "COMIDAS SALUDABLES' operado por Rosas Plane Food de Calexico

To our Catexico communlly: The Hafternan Memarial Heallhcare Dislrict awardered 2 granls to local medical
providers In order to improve the health of our community. The “FIT & HEALTHY" this Non-Profl program is
facused on reducing childhood ohesity in our community providing heallh, exercise and nutritional support.
For mare informalion cali: 760 585 1010

“THE HEALTH & WELLNESS" program will serve 800 residenls of Calexico wilh na heallh Insurance. The
services provided in the Medical Program are to be at no cost lo the patjenls served and shall include lreat-
mant of chronic medical like Diabetes, F ion, Coronary Artery Disease, Obaesity, Astma/
COPD, Cancer and Govid-19, For more Informalion call: 760 654 5941

The “Meals an Wheels" pragram is providing food to vulnerable senior residents. Wa are also providing daily
maals to 47 Seniors through the "HEALTHY MEALS" program oparatad by Rosas Flane Food of Calaxlco

Edificio Comunilario 400 calle Mary
Proyecto de remodelacio

400 Mary Slreel Community Building
Remodeling Prcjecl

—

Wa starled the remodalation of the Community Building
lncated at 400 Mary St This nmhu.wﬂl benalit the
entire community sinca its tse will ba for health and
unces, workshope,

s

todi s mmﬂw ¥
blenestar a iravis o ciasas,

will-balng through classes, coni

ton far vidao co
This projact is to ba ready by D:
2021.

ra [a Graduados de Calexico H S Distribucion de Cubre Bacas y Desinfeclanle de Manos | Scholarships to Calexico High Schaol Dislribulion of Face Masks, and Hand Sanilizer
Clase del 2021 y a esludiantes de | V.C GRATIS para los Residenies de Calexico. Seniors Class of 2021 & IVC Students FREE to Calexico Residents

Thies FREE fams 4t delvared at our sisinet offics
HMHD otorgaré 20 bacas de $ 1,000.00 Haftarnan | Healihcare District

cada uno para los graduados de |a prepara- il e e ; MW .INN H‘ Ayenus, 5 days a wask from 9 em.
toria de Calexico y a estudiartes del Coleglo B
det Valla Imperial que continuar&n su carrera
escolar en 8l campo de la salud. Para més
Lnfurmncidn comunlquess a nuesira oﬁdna

La
sgitio web el 1 de meyo del 2021,

La prueba de COVID-19 en Calexico as proporci por al D de Salud del Condado
de Imperial, Para obtener més informacion, comuniquese con el Deparfamento de Salud Publica
del Condado de Imperial: (442) 265. 6700

También en nuastro silio wab una lista de p médicos que ofracen esta prueba.

Testing for COVID-19 in Calexico is provided by lhe Imperial Counly Heallh depariment
For more information contact the Imperial County Public Heallh Depariment al: (442) 265, 6700
Also in our websile you will find a list of medical providers (hat are offafing COVID-19 tesling

HMHD SPECIAL_MEETING - May 1st. 2021 at 10:00 a.m. Cultural Arts centar
SPECIAL MEETING discussion on the eslabiishmenl of Lirgant Care Center by H.M.H.D

Wea invite Ihe community to parlicipale In lhis speclal mealing to express thel |deas regarding this
very important project, Please pre-ragisiar by phone al (T60) 357 8522

1 JUNTA ESPECIAL DE ﬁMHD -1 de Mayo, 2021 - 10:00 a.m. Centro de Artes Culturales de Calexlco
JUNTA ESPECIAL sobe el posible establecimiento de un Cenlro de Atencion de Urgencias por HMH D
Invitamos a |la comunidad a participar en esta 1unta especial pam que expresen sus ideas al respeclo a

esle proyecto tan il por teléfono al (760) 357.6522




HEFFERNAN | MEMORIAL PPE Delivery 2020-2021

HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
“Working for a Healthy Calexico”

PPE Delivery to
PPE Delivery to the Community Health providers

PPE Delivery to Senior PPE Delivery during
Apartments vaccination events

Mtrnemmen | Mismnay i ] -
sisirebant’ satrmse v "




HEFFERNAN W,A MEMORIAL

HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
“Working for a Healthy Calexico”

Delivery of PPE to Calexico Police Department and
Non-Profit Community organizations

HMHD Community Building remodeling project at 400 Mary St.
estimated completion date: April 2022
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HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT)

As of June 30, 2020 and for
the fiscal year then ended



George J. Woo

Certified Public Accountont — e

y

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Calexico, California

| have audited the accompanying statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position and statement of cash flows of the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare
District as of June 30, 2020 and the fiscal year then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively compromise the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. |
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the State Controller's minimum audit requirements for California Special
District. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly | express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

[ believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion.

1085 State Street ¢« ElI Centro, California 92243 -7760) 337-5555 + Fax 337-8796
E-mail address gjwcpa@sbcecglobal.net



Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District as of June 30, 2020, and the
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as accounting
systems prescribed by the State Controller's Office and state regulations governing special
districts.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. | have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge | obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. | do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

g~
February 2, 2021



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

The following section of the annual financial report of the Heffernan Memorial
Healthcare District (the "District") includes an overview and analysis of the District's
financial position and activities for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. This
discussion and analysis, as well as the basic financial statements which it accompanies,
is the responsibility of the management of the District.

Introduction to the Basic Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles; such report has been designed to
improve the usefulness of the report to the primary users of these basic financial
statements.

The District presents its basic financial statements using the economic resources
measurement to focus and accrual basis of accounting. As a Business-Type Activity,
the District's basic financial statements include a Statement of Net Position; a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, a Statement of Changes in Net Position; and a
Statement of Cash Flows. Notes to the basic financial statements and this section
support these statements. All sections must be considered together to obtain a
complete understanding of the financial position and results of operations of the District.

Statements of Net Position — The Statements of Net Position include all assets and
liabilities of the District, with the difference between the two reported as net position.
Assets and liabilities are reported at their book value, onan accrual basis, as of June
30, 2020, and 2019. These statements also identify major categories of restrictions on
the District’s net position.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - The
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the revenues
earned and expenses incurred by the District during the years ended June 30, 2020,
and 2019, on the accrual basis of accounting.

Statement of Cash Flows — The Statements of Cash Flows present the changes in the
District's cash and investments for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. Such
statements are summarized by operating, capital, and noncapital financing and
investing activities. The statements of cash flows have been prepared using the direct
method of reporting cash flows and, therefore, present gross, rather than net amounts,
for each respective year's activities.



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

Condensed Financial Position Information

The following condensed financial information provided an overview of the District's
financial position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019.

2020 2019
Assets:
Capital assets, net $ 663,927 $ 680,407
Other assets 6,226,587 5,325,749
Total assets __6.890.514 6,006,156
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 17,232 1,976
Total liabilities 17,232 1,976
Net position:
Invested in capital position; net of related debt 663,927 680,407
Unrestricted 6,209,415 5,923,773
Total net position $ 6,873,342 $6,606,156%

(a) Net Position
Net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, increased $ 269,162
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and increased $ 190,506 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019.

(b) Utility Plant
Net capital assets, which is comprised of property plant and equipment, net
decrease of $ 16,480. The net increase was due to capital outlay office
equipment of $ 7,531 and a decrease from the annual depreciation expense in
the amount of $ 24,011.



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

(c) Other Assets

Other assets consist of cash, investments, and accounts receivable.
(d) Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consists of accounts payable.



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

Summary of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Changes in the District's net assets for fiscal years ended 2020 and 2019 was a
increase of $ 269,162 and an increase of $ 190,506. The tables below summarize the
District's fiscal year 2020 and 2019 activity:

020 201
Operating revenues:
Revenue -0- -0-
Operating expenses:
Professional services 66,525 59,122
Other operating expenses 270,108 250,894
Depreciation 24,011 22,605
Total operating expense 360.644 332,621
Operating income (loss) (360.644) (332,621)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Property taxes 1,031,755 939,321
Interest income 53,312 48,530
Grants (455,261) (464,724)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) Net 629,806 523,127
Increase in net position 269,162 190,506
Total net position, beginning of year 6.604,180 6,413,674
Total net position, end of year $ 6,873,342 $ 6,604,180




Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

(a) Operating Expenses
Operating expenses consists of professional services, administrative expenses and
other operating expenses. During the year, operating expenses (including
depreciation) increased $ 28,023,

(b) Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of interest income and property
taxes.

Capital Assets
(a) Capital Assets

Capital assets is comprised of land and buildings. Equipment consists of office
furniture and computer equipment.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Heffernan
Memorial Healthcare District's finances for all those with an interest in the district's
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Treasurer,
Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District, 601 Heber Ave., Calexico, CA 92231.



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSET
Non current assets:

Land
Capital assets, net of Accumuluated Depreciation

Total capital assets, net
Note receivable (Note 4)

Total non current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Position:

Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

$ 5,723,102

3,545

5,726,647

142,750

521,177

663,927

500,000
1,163,927
$ 6,890,574

§ 17.232
17,232

663,927

6,209,415
6,873,342

$ 6,890,574

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Marketing and promotion
Administration services
Professional services
Other operating expenses:

Governing board
Depreciation expense
General operations
Insurance

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Net Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Property taxes
Interest income
Grants

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net
Increase in net position
Net Position, beginning of the year

Net Position, end of the year

$ -0-

24,111
80,552
66,525

28,400
24,011
133,580
3,465

360,644

(360,644)

1,031,755
53,312
(455,261)

629,806
269,162

6.604,180

$ 6,873,342

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash paid for grants $ (455,261)
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services (321,377)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (776,638)

Cash flows from non capital financing activities:

Cash received from property taxes 1,029,564

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities 1,029,564

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets (7,631)

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities (7,531)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received 53,312
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 298,707
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,424,395
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,723,102

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
10



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Statement of Cash Flows - Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash from operating
activities:

Operating income (loss) $  (360,644)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
in operating activities:

Increase in accounts payable 15,256
Depreciation 24,011
Grants (455,261)
Total adjustments (415,994)
Net cash from operating activities $ (776,638)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
11



Heffernan Memaorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments and to
general practice within California Special Districts. The District accounts for
financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the State
Comptroller's Office Division of Local Government Fiscal Affairs Minimum Audit
Requirements and Reporting Guidelines for California Special Districts. The

following is a summary of the more significant policies.

General

The Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District (the "District") was formed in 1951 as
a Hospital District, a subdivision of the State of California under the Health and
Safety Code Division 23, Section 12000-32358. The District was formally known
as Heffernan Memorial Hospital District. The name change became effective

August 13, 2009.

Each of the five members of the District's Board of Directors holds office for a
four-year term. Elections are by popular vote of the constituents within the

District’s boundaries.

The District's certification to provide and bill for inpatient and outpatient services
was revoked on September 22, 1995 by Medicare and Medical and the District
suspended operations of its general acute care facility. On November 13, 1995,
the District entered into bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code and
adopted and carried out a bankruptcy-restructuring plan with the City of Calexico
and the City of Calexico’s Community Redevelopment Agency, secured creditors

and a committee of unsecured creditors.



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The District has and continues to assess the healthcare needs of the Imperial
Valley. The District makes grants to healthcare providers who provide needed

healthcare services.

Reporting Entity

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that these financial statements present the accounts of the District and any of its
component units. Component units are legally separate entities of which the
District is considered to be financially accountable or otherwise has a
relationship, which is such that the exclusion of the entity would cause the
financial statements to be misleading. Blended component units are considered,
in substance, part of the District's operations, so the accounts of these entities
are to be combined with the data of the District. Component units, which do not
meet these requirements, are reported in the financial statements as discrete
units to emphasize their separate legal status. However, the District has
determined that it is not financially accountable for, nor has any other relationship
with, any other organization, which would require its inclusion in these financial

statements.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989, generally are followed to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance subject to this same limitation. The District
has elected to follow subsequent private-sector guidance that does not conflict

with or contradict GASB statements.

The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with the District's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges
to patients for services. Operating expenses include cost of services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and

expenses.
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government’'s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements
Presentation

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

All cash and cash equivalents are considered to be demand deposits, money
market funds and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less form the date of acquisition, which are not exposed to custodial
credit risk because their existences is not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form.

14



Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital assets

Capital assets consist of office equipment, building and improvements and land.
Capital assets are defined by the District, as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than $ 1,000 and an estimated useful life of five years or more. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value
at the date of donation. Depreciation of office equipment is provided on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of five years. Buildings are

depreciated over the estimated useful life of 40 years.

Included in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets for

the year ended June 30, 2020 is $ 24,011, in depreciation expense.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the

assets or materially extend the asset's life are not capitalized.

Property taxes

Property taxes are assessed under various legislative provisions, contained in
the Government Code and the Revenue and Taxation Code, by the County
Assessor and State Board of Equalization. Taxes on real property are limited to
one percent of assessed valuation plus additional taxes for repayment of any
existing voted indebtedness. Imperial County in accordance with statutory

formulas collects and distributes the taxes to the District.

The County of Imperial (the County) bills and collects property taxes on behalf of
numerous special districts and incorporated cities, including the District. The
District’s collections of current year's taxes are received through periodic

apportionments from the County.

Secured property taxes are levied on or before the first business day of
September of each year. They become a lien on real property on January 1%
proceeding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied and can be paid in tow
installments. The first installment is due November 1% and delinquent December
10" and the second installment is due February 1% of the following year and is
delinquent April 10™. Unsecured personal property taxes are due January 1%,

and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31,
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income taxes

The District is a political subdivision of the State of California and, as such, is
exempt from federal and state income taxes.

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District's cash deposits at year end are categorized below to give an
indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the District.

Category 1 — Cash deposits which are insured by FDIC.

Category 2 — Cash deposits which are collateralized. The California Government
Code required California banks and savings and loan associations to secure a
District's deposits by pledging government securities with a value of 110% of a
District's deposits, or by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value
of 150% of a District's total deposits.

Category 3 — Cash deposits which are uninsured or uncollaterized.

The District had no Risk Category 2 and 3 cash, cash equivalents and
investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Neither the
California Government Code nor the County's investment policy contains legal or
policy requirements that would limit the District's exposure to custodial credit risk
for deposits, except that the California Government Code requires that a financial
institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least 100% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.
California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured
public deposits.
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 2: CASH AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in
Imperial County. The total of all accounts at each institution are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $ 250,000. The District occasionally
carries cash balances in banks in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation's insurance limits.

Classification of Investments by Credit Risk

Categories

Carrying  Market Value
1 2 3 Amount

Demand accounts $ 250,000 $5473,102 $-0- $5.473,102 $ 5,473,102

Total $ 250,000 $5473,102 $-0- $5.473.102 $5.473,102

Investment Income

For the year ended June 30, 2020, investment income consisted of interest
income of $ 53,312.

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets as of June 30, 2020 follows:

Balance as of Balance as of
July 1,2019  Additions Retirements June 30, 2020

Non-depreciable Assets:

Land $ 142750 $ -0- % 0- $ 142,750
Depreciable Assets:

Building/Improvements 576,433 -0- -0- 576,433

Office Equipment 54,177 7,531 -0- 61,708
Total Depreciable Assets 630,610 7,531 -0- 638,141
Less Accumulated Depreciation (116.964)
Total Depreciable Assets, Net 521,177
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 663927

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $ 24,011.
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Note Receivable - MegaPark

The Purchase deposit of $ 500,000 for the Mega Park LLC remains unpaid.
Heffernan Memorial Hospital District has the $ 500,000 purchase deposit
secured by a promissory note and a trust deed recorded against the Mega Park
LLC property. The principal amount is generating 6 % annual interest as of 2009.
Heffernan Memorial Hospital District remains a secured creditor. Heffernan
Memorial Hospital District is in a junior lien position. A senior lien holder has
priority over Heffernan Memorial's junior lien position. Heffernan Memorial
Hospital has not commenced litigation or default proceedings against Mega Park
LLC. Mega Park LLC has obtained final mapping of the property from the City of
Calexico as of February 2020. Mega Pack LLC has informed Heffernan Memorial
Hospital it will repay the money owed with accumulated interest upon developing
the property.

NOTE 5: GRANTS

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the District granted awards to several
healthcare providers that provide healthcare services and other not for profit
organizations. During the year end

ed June 30, 2020, the District contributed

$ 455,261.

NOTE 6: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events through February 2, 2021, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued. No events have
occurred which would have a material effect on the financial statements of the
District as of that date.
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Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

Final Budget

For the Fiscal Year from Juiy 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Income

4000 - Rev Sharing - County / City
4100 -
4200 -

Interest income
Cther Income

Total Income

Expenses

6010 -
6300 -
6300 -
6310 -
6500 -
6600 -
« Accounting - Audit
6615 -
- Administration services
7000 -
7200 -
7200 -
7210 .

6610

6650

7215

7560

Trustee remuneration
Rent

Repairs and maintenance
Landscaping

Insurance

Legal and professional

Accounting - Other

Marketing

Supplies

Leasing Office Equipment
Janitorial - Supplies

< Janitorial - Services
7250 -
7270 -
7285 -
7285 -
7400 -
7410 -
7420 -
7550 -
7555,
. Urgent Care Consuitant
7565 .
7610 -
7800 -
7900 -
8030 -
8200 -

Utilities

Telephone

Grants

Grants - Other

Travel

Training and education
Meals

Promotion

Emergency response

Parks

Dues and subscriptions
Mileage reimbursement
Miscellaneous

Praperty tax

Bank charges

Total Expenses
Net Income before CO

Capital Outlays

0000 -
0000 -
7800 -

l.and
Building
Others

Total Capital Outlays

Budget
2021/ 2022

1,000,000
52,000
7,500

1,059,500

30,000
2,000
5,000
2,500
4,200

36,000

12,000

25,000

100,000

35,000
4,000
1,600
1,500
6,000
7,000
6,500

300,000

10,000
5,000
8,000

10,000

25,000

50,000

25,000

25,000
6,500

500
1,000
10,000
300

755,500

304,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Prepared: May 18, 2021
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AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT AND VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC
JULY1, 2021 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2022

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District, a
healthcare district organized under California Health and Safety Code section 32000,
(“Heffernan”) and VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC, a California non-profit Public Benefit
Corporation and made effective as of the date first appearing below (the “Effective Date")
under the terms of this Grant Agreement

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Heffernan is desirous of promoting and assisting wellness and prevention programs
and service providers and organizations for the maintenance of good physucal and mental
health in the communities served by Heffernan, and

WHEREAS, VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC is a nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
organized under the laws of the State of California and will provide to HMHD’s residents of all
ages, at risk or suffering from the following conditions (deemed high priority needs):

a. Urgent Care Services: Mental Health and Mental Wellness Services.

b. Chronic Conditions Management: Diabetes, Hypertension, Cardiovascular Disease,
Coronary Artery Disease, Obesity, Asthma/COPD, Cancer and Covid-19.

¢. Preventive Care Services.

d. Healthcare Screenings: (HTN, Diabetes, Cancer).
Meal/Nutrition Services.

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC seeks to implement a medical program for 400 or more
patients in Calexico/Heffernan’s district to help the patients improve the health of the District’s
most vulnerable population. These services are to be provided by VO NEIGHBORHOOD
MEDICAL CLINIC at no charge to the patients.

WHEREAS, the VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC wishes to provide its services to residents
of the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC shall provide the services detailed in the VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC proposal dated 06/17/2021 submittal for grant funding
labeled “Heffernan-Vo Medical Service” which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and



incorporated by reference into this Agreement as though set forth herein, for participants
residing within the boundaries of the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District. This direct
financial assistance by Heffernan is to allow the VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC
program participants to receive the services provided by the VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL
CLINIC Program free of charge.

2. COMPENSATION

Subject to and under the term and provisions of this Agreement, Heffernan agrees to grant
VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC the sum of $150,000.00 to fund the VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC services as detailed in their grant submittal (Exhibit A)
commencing on the Effective Date and continuing through June 30, 2022. The total sum
will be paid in varying monthly instaliments, due to VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC at
the end of each month after services are provided. The monthly payments will be disbursed
to VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC by Heffernan’s accountant during the term of this
Agreement following submission of a report of actual and proper expenditures under the
VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC agreement of services authorized and provided.
Services and programs provided by VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC under the VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC agreement are presumed proper expenditures, unless
otherwise denied or contested by Heffernan’s accountant prior to disbursement. If
Heffernan’s accountant contests a proposed or actual expenditure as improper, VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC shall have an opportunity to provide additional
information or context before Heffernan’s accountant’s decision is made final.

3. RECORDS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC shall provide monthly financial reports about these
grant funds and a Profit and Loss financial statement to Heffernan within 30 days of the
close of the funding month and 30 days after the funding termination date of this
agreement. Upon reasonable and written request by Heffernan, during the term of this
agreement, financial information about this allocation and funding shall be reviewed with
Heffernan or its designated representative.

4. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be effective as of the July 1, 2021, and shall automatically terminate
on June 30, 2022 unless otherwise agreed upon in writing.



5. REPORTS

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC shall submit written activity reports, within 30 days of
the close of the funding month, to the Heffernan Board. If requested by the Heffernan
Board, a presentation to the Heffernan Board relating to services outlined and the activities
undertaken as specified in this agreement shall be made. The report shall detail VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC services and its activities during the monthly reporting
period.

Within thirty days (30} of the close or termination of this Agreement, VO NEIGHBORHOOD
MEDICAL CLINIC shall submit to Heffernan an expenditure report with a detailed accounting
of all expenditures related to services provided for under this Agreement.

6. INDEMNIFICATION

The Parties agree to defend and hold the other Party and all its officers, agents, employees,
and representatives harmless against any claims brought for or because of personal injury,
including death, claims of breach of confidentiality, or business and property damage, which
may arise from the Party’s willful or negligent acts, errors or omissions under this
Agreement. The Party’s agree to defend and indemnify the other Party and its officers,
agents, employees, and representatives from any suits or actions at law or equity for
damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, from the other Party’s willful or negligent
act, errors or omissions.

If suit or arbitration is initiated by either party to enforce its rights under this Agreement,
the losing party shall pay the prevailing party’s attorney’s fees and cost.

7. INSURANCE

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC shall, throughout the duration of the Agreement,
maintain professional liability insurance for all VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC
physicians and medical personnel providing services under this agreement and such
insurance policy shall have minimum coverége limits of not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000} for any one occurrence and not less than three million dollars ($3,000,000) in
the aggregate for any one (1) year and comprehensive general liability and property
damage insurance covering all operations of VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC, its
agents, contractors and employees, including but not limited to premises with minimum
coverage of One Million Dollars (5$1,000,000.00) combined single limits. Automobile
insurance will also be required in the amount of $100,000/$300,000.00 and property
damage in the amount of 5100, 000. The policies shall name Heffernan, inclusive of each of
its officers and employees, as an additional insured, and a Certificate of Insurance shall be



furnished to Heffernan at 601 Heber Avenue, Calexico, CA 92231. Said policy or policies
shall provide thirty-day (30) notice to Heffernan of cancellation or of a material change. VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC shall also carry workers compensation insurance in the
required statutory amount, evidence of which is to be furnished to Heffernan in a
Certificate of Insurance. All such policies shall be in a form satisfactory to Heffernan’s
General Counsel. ' '

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The parties agree that VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC and all representatives and
employees thereof are independent contractors and shali not be an employee of Heffernan,
nor shall any representative or employee of the VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC
represent or imply directly or indirectly that he or she represents or may speak for or bind
Heffernan.

9. NOTICES

(a) Any notice may be served upon éither party by delivering it in person, or by depositing it
in a U.S. Mail deposit box with the postage thereon prepaid,-and addressed to the party
at the address set forth below:
(b) o
Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
601 Heber Avenue
Calexico, CA 92231

Vo Neighborhood Medicatl Clinic.
222 E. Cole Blvd.
Calexico, CA 92231

(c) Any notice given shall be deemed effective with personal delivery, upon receipt thereof
or with mailing, at the moment of deposit n the course of transmission with the United
States Postal Service, except for a notice of termi'natibn which shall be effectivve 3 déys
following deposit with the United States Postal Service.

10. ASSIGNMENT

This is a services contract for unique services. Neither VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC
nor Heffernan may assign or transfer any rights or obligations arising from this Agreement,
or any part thereof, without prior written consent of the other party.



11. AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing duly executed by each
party. ‘

12. INTEGRATION -

This writing constitutes the entire and complete Agreement between the parties relative to
the subject. No party relies upon any warranty or representation, express or implied not
specifically set forth herein.

13. WAIVER

Waiver of a breach or default under this Agreement shall not constitute a continuing waiver
of a later breach of the same or any other provision under this Agreement.

14, SEVERABILITY

If any term or portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the
Agreement shall continue in full force and affect.

15. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE

This Agreement and all matters relating to it shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California and any action brought relating to this Agreement shall be held exclusively in a
state court in the County of Imperial.

16. MEDIATION

The parties agree to make a good faith attempt to resolve any disputes arising out of this
Agreement through mediation prior to commencing litigation. The parties shall mutually
agree upon the mediator and share the costs of mediation equaily. If the parties cannot
agree upon a mediator, the dispute shall be submitted to JAMS/ENDISPUTE (“JAMS”). Each
party shall strike two of the five mediators selected by JAMS and thereafter the mediator
remaining shall hear the dispute. If the dispute remains unresolved after mediation, either
party may commence litigation.

17. EXECUTION

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute the
same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one copy shall



have been signed by both parties. In approving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to
produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

18. AUTHORITY TO ENTER AGREEMENT

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC has all requisite power and authority to conduct its
business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement. Each party warrants that the
individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right and authority to
make this Agreement and to bind each respective party,

19. PROHIBITED INTERESTS

VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC maintains and warrants it has not employed nor
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC warrants it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any
company or person, other that a bona fide employee working solely for VO
NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or
other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this -
Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty Heffernan may rescind this Agreement
without liability. For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer, or employee of
Heffernan, during the term of his or her service with Heffernan; shall have any direct
interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising
there from.

20. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

VO NEIGHBORHOQD MEDICAL CLINIC represents that it is an equal opportunity employer
and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee, or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex, or age.
Such non-discrimination shall include, -but not be limited to, all activities related to initial
employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertizing, layoff
or termination.:



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on

VYosd_1y20m
Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

BY: (/—4{(’,(_1 I (//i.rf.a_ A LL -

Y

Gloria Grijalva, President, Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

& J 1
Djuse N !4 2021
BY: ’ i/\ TN scmmns
0 V -~

Venus Nguyen, President
Vo Nelghborhood Medical Clinic.

Attachment of VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC's funding request labeled Heffernan-Vo Medical
Service, dated 06/17/2021 is attached and made a part of this Grant Agreement as though set forth
herein.
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HEFFERNAN M EMORIAL

HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

February 1, 2021

Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic ' -

222 E. Cole Blvd. b CENED

Calexico, CA 92231 . FEB 22202
‘mmlzé‘l_!ccgunty

Re: Approval of Grant Application Funding Request
Dear Mr. Cardenas:

After careful consideration, it is our pleasure to inform you that the request for
grant funding for your program has been approved! Heffernan Memorial is very

committed to the services and goals your program will be providing and therefore
wish your organization the best of luck and success!

Heffernan Memorial will need to schedule a meeting with your representative to
finalize the contract between our organizations. Please contact Tomas Virgen at
the District Office at your earliest convenience for this purpose.

Sincerely,

Gloria Grijalva, President
Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

1 FILE COPY.



\‘%ANT APPLICATION COVER PAGE (For January 1, 2021-June 30, 2021 Submissions)

Legal Name of Organization: Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic

Agency Director: Alex Cardenas

Address: 222 E. Cole Blvd. Calexico, CA 92231

Phone (& Extension): 442-271-4460

E-Mail Address: alex@casaic.org

Website: www.VoMedicalCenter.com

Proposed Project Title: Heffernan-Vo Medical Service

Agency Contact Person: Esmeralda Diaz

Phope (& Extension): 442-283-3494

}ail Address: ediaz@tivomnd.com
A

Amount of Funds Requested; $208,168

Number of Unduplicated HMHD Residents to be Served: 600 or more

Ages of Population to be Served: All Ages at-risk or suffering from the conditions below.
As described as a High Priority Need, this program will assist in addressing the following:

1. Chronic Conditions:
" 2. Hypertension / Cardiovascular
Disease Diabetes
3. Asthma Obesity
4. Cancer

5. Healthcare Screenings: HTN,
Diabetes, Cancer.

" 6. Meals / Nutrition Program

Program Description:
d in this application is complete and accurate.

-+ tye) certify that all information include
) ?’/E-}—/'/ Ny NG ‘/ EV ey I / i / £O
B Venus Nguyen, FNP

Jature of person authorized by agency



Grant Application Summary:

In Imperial County, the most obvious systemic problems associated with persistent poverty are revealed
through documented health disparities. Imperial County’s 2019 Health Status Profile shows clearly how
poorly Imperial performs on morbidity and mortality of several chronic and infectious diseases. Within
California’s 58 counties, Imperial County is ranked 57th in mortality rates for diabetes and is 58th in
mortality rates for influenza/pneumonia. Imperial County also has the highest rates of tuberculosis
infection. Many cities and communities within the County experience additional health disparities with
other diseases such as heart disease, cancer, sexually transmitted diseases, and asthma.

Imperial County has experienced shortages in medical professionals, such as pulmonologists,
cardiologist, nephrologists and endocrinologists. Within the County, two areas have been designated
Medically Underserved Areas for more than a decade: Calexico and Imperial County. This project will
target more than 600 who are primarily Hispanic (85% of the population) individuals of all ages in the
Calexico region.

Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic (VNMC) is partnered with Vo Medical Center to provide the Free
Services to the residents of Calexico CA, funded by Heffernan Memorial HealthCare District. Calexico
has one of the highest rates of asthma, obesity, and diabetes in the county. We need to help the
community to be more proactive so in turn we can reduce the healthcare cost in the future by screening
and starting treatment early to avoid complications. The aforementioned services include screening for
Diabetes, Hypertension, Coronary Artery Disease, Obesity, Asthma/COPD, Cancer and Covid/Meals to

Heal.

Ve will focus on the entire population, people of all ages, race, and ethnicity. The project will include
harketing and community advocates and education. VNMC will come to each senior apartment and
center to screen for chronic conditions including: Diabetes, Hypertension, Coronary Artery Disease,
Obesity, Asthma/COPD, Cancer and Covid-19/Meals to Heal. Our plan would include a referral to Vo
Medical Center where they will consult with a provider, followed by an order of comprehensive labs,
electrocardiogram (EKG), and Chest X-ray, and complete physical examination. We plan to see 100
patients per month for 6 months for physical exam, follow-ups, laboratory tests, Chest X-ray and EKG to
identify/diagnose the problems and provide treatments. In order to process, we will hire 2 Medical
assistants (full time), 1 lab technician for the mobile testing services, and one marketing staff (part time)
and one provider (MD) (50 hrs. per month) to lead the program. A complete list of objectives and
services will follow in the program services and performance plan regarding the grant. The expected
benefits of these services are to improve the health outcome to the most vulnerable population in the

Calexico region.

Target Population:

This project will benefit at least two socially disadvantaged groups that are served by its member
nonprofits: Hispanic/Latino population and Native American Indians. Imperial County is 85% Hispanic or
Latino, and VNHCC will provide services to a majority Hispanic/Latino population. According to a 2020
report by the Congressional Research Service, Imperial County is a persistent poverty county with
poverty rates above 20% for the last 30 years. According to Imperial County’s 2019 Health Status Profile,
31% of children under 18 are living in poverty, compared to 19% for California. For decades there has

been negligible improvement in poverty levels.



~Agency Capability:

Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic Cooperative's (VNMCC), established in November of 2017, is a
registered nonprofit tax-exempt IRS 501-(c) (3 (see Appendix A) located in Imperial County, California (a
persistent poverty County). The mission of VNMCC is to ensure that all individuals in Imperial County
have access to quality healthcare and to reduce negative impacts of social determinants of health.
VNMCC physical address is located at 222 E. Cole Blvd. Calexico, CA 92231 and is serving the
population of over 40,000 residents in the city of Calexico.

As a non-profit organization dedicated to providing health and improving lives, we acknowledge that we
have a responsibility to help. Our goals for Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic, along with our strategic
alliance with Vo Medical Center, are to keep our communities healthy and safe in response to the

COVID-19 pandemic.

Our team of clinicians and healthcare workforce have been and are currently testing and treating COVID-
19 patients. Testing started in the city of Calexico, and is now happening in El Centro, and Brawley as
well. Our commitment to our community during the COVID-19 crisis focused on responding to the
pandemic all while supporting our health care providers and the communities in which we serve.

Here are some examples of how we are helping our communities over the years:

» Doing community outreach on topics such as Diabetes, Obesity, Heart Disease related to Obesity,
Asthma prevention program, and recently COVID-19 related health issues

» Providing free health screening to low-income families and the under-insured and uninsured

¢ Providing free health and sport physicals to children across many schools in the county

e Supporting local relief efforts

e Feeding the homeless of Imperial County

 Team up with city mayors to bring COVID-19 testing to more cities in the Imperial County

* Providing fabric masks to mare than 2,000 essential workers during the COVID-19 pandemic

“A nonprofit corporation operated by the grantee for cooperative or business development and where a
majority of the board of directors or governing board is comprised of individuals who are members of

Socially-Disadvantaged Groups.”

As shown in Table 1 below, the Board for VNHCC is a representation of a majority of socially
disadvantaged groups, with 565% both Hispanic/Latino and Asian. The representation on the Board of
sacially disadvantaged groups is also largely reflective of the County population (85% Latino/Hispanic)
and the consistent with the makeup of other nonprofits in the County, the latter being potential member
organizations in the future.

Table 1: Board for Vo Neighborhood Health Clinic Cooperative

' Board .. | .Employer, | oo . L cof U SKillsand, o Racel | g
Name.. .| Position- | Position | Qraanization |- e iertise. .| Ethnicity=| oondsr.
Venus . Vo Medical Medical Practice :

Nguyen President Owner Center Management Asian Female

Gavla Vice Faith Base ““Non-Profit and

Strcz" President Retired International Business Caucasian | Female
- bl Ministries Management




[ Higher Community
Martha . University of | Engagement/Higher . .
Singh | 1reasurer Eﬁucahon California Learning Hispanic | Female
eader
Management
- Count L 3
e E Non-Profit and
Alex Executive Appointed - ‘ : :
Cardenas | Secretary Director - ‘Special - MBL.’..S'QGS.S_.t Hispanic | Male
Advocates vianagemen
School
Charles Board Retired Eig:ggo Administration c . Mal
Fisher Member Y /Business aucasianif, Vaic
School Board
Management
Imperial AL
Air Pollution | County Air Business "
Matt Board Control Pollution Owner/Gowvt Caucasian | Male
Dessert Member . S
Officer Control Management
District
Assemblvman California's
Stella Board e duarﬂo 56th = ¢ Aftairs | Hisoanic | Femat
e Member _ Assembly overnmen airs ispanic emale
Garcia S
District
Velazquez Board Medical Vo Medical . Puerto
Juan M.D. | Member Doctor Center icEisaliReEtor Rican Male
Clara . . T
Board Medical Vo Medical . LooE R
Padron- |\, ber | Doctor Center Medical Dactor .. |. Hispanic:.| Female
Spence EET
S‘tjroohnn Board Medical Vo Medical Medical Doctor Caucasian | Mal
M Dg' Member Doctor Center ale

In addition, VNHCC is acting as administrator for the Housing for the Harvest Program in Imperial County
in cooperation with Community Base Organizations for wrap around services. This gives us the
opportunity to serve yet another population base, those individuals who work in the essential agricultural
industry. Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic currently provides similar services to underserved populations
in Imperial County. Our organization remains focused on community outreach and providing essential
healthcare services as well as diagnostic COVID-19 testing to all residents of the Imperial County. As a
non-profit 501.C.3 organization dedicated to providing health and improving lives, we recognize that we
have a responsibility and are able to help in our community.

Problem Statement/Needs Statement:

The systemic problems described above have been further exposed by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Imperial County has experienced the highest infection rates in the state with 1 infection per 19 people—
this is four times higher than the entire state of California. This high rate of cases is attributed to the
nexus of labor dynamics, persistent poverty and health disparities for the large percentage of socially
sadvantaged people living in the county-those that are Hispanic and Latino. Unemployment in Imperial
.4 a chronic, systemic problem. The largest private industry in the County is agriculture. The five-year
average unemployment rate in the County hovers around 16%, which varies throughout the year given



“the seasonality of agriculture. In August of 2019, the unemployment rate in Imperial County was 18.7%.
) owever, business closures due to COVID-19 have exacerbated the already high unemployment levels,
and unemployment is now approaching 28%.

Other manifestations of persistent poverty in Imperial County are less obvious because they are more
difficult to track and quantify, but nevertheless play a vital role in community health and are growing in
importance to insurers and local agencies. These include insidious and ongoing problems with hunger,
homelessness/inadequate housing, teenage pregnancy, low graduation rates, substance abuse and
other factors that contribute to the collective body of Social Determinants of Health (SDH). An
organization with member organizations addressing a broad range of SDHs can collectively make a
difference on these disparities.

Urgently, we need to help with Covid-19 patients in Calexico to stay home and not to spread to others so
we can open more businesses.

Our purpose and goal is to test more patients so we can isolate early and stop the spread of Covid-19.
For our isolated patients, we will provide meals to stay home and treat with USFDA approved
medications to avoid having to cross the border for medications and spreading the virus even further to
our neighboring country, Mexico. We will provide mobile testing to senior centers as they are a higher
risk and should avoid traveling. We will come to see patients in their homes, draw blood, and treat
patients with positive Covid-19 results and provide meals that will be taken directly to their homes. We
will hire a Lab technician to assist with blood draw and run our Covid-19, influenza and strep throat tests
and providers will see patients via telehealth so the patient may remain at home to ensure the safety of
oviders and patients alike.

.‘rogram Services and Performance Plan:

The goal is to reduce the number of unhealthy individuals and reduce costs to the HMHD.

Patients with higher risk factors include:
All ages

Smokers

HTN (systolic blood pressure >140)
DM ( Fasting glucose > 126)

CAD, chest pain or already diagnosed
Dietary Noncompliance, BMI>30
Hyperlipidemia cholesterol >200

NOoOahLN -

These are measurable risk factors that we will screen for and document in the electronic medical records
(EMR). We will conduct all the blood tests, Chest X-Rays, Spirometry, and EKGs to confirm the
diagnoses and develop wellness plans for each patient.

The data to be collected, analyzed, and shared with healthcare professionals will be as follows.

Screening: Initial Visit/Screening
Names | Age | BMI | FBS | Smoker | Blood Spirometry | Diseases Noncompliance
| _ pressure | FVC/FEV1

P\




Two Week Follow-Up Visit

Names | Age | BMI | FBS | Smoker | Blood Diseases Noncompliance
pressure

A

B

Three Month Follow-Up Visit

Names | Age | BMI | FBS | Smoker | Blood Diseases Noncompliance
pressure

A

B

C

Six Months Follow-Up Visit.

Names | Age | BMI | FBS | Smoker | Blood Diseases Noncompliance
pressure

To become more effective, our full-time medical assistants will continue to call and assist patients while
they are active in their medical programs. The program is accessible to all Calexico residents who meet
our screening criteria. We have established a dedicated hotline and a patient friendly location in Calexico
_ior potential patients:

Phone Number: 442 271 4460
Address: 222 E. Cole Blvd Calexico, CA 92231

Screening Criteria: Calexico Residents will qualify for the program if they exhibit any two of the foliowing
criteria’s listed below.

All Ages

Systolic BP> 140

BMI> 30

Smoker

Alcohol user

Cholesterol >200

Spirometry with FVC and FEV1 <80%

Fasting blood sugar >126

Diseases: Diagnosed with CAD, HTN, DM, ESRD, Cancer, CHF, Asthma/COPD,

CONOOA~ON

Primary purpose of this program is the following:

1. Address Medical problems to reduce asthma/COPD complications, Emergency Room visits,
reduce obesity percentages, and control or reduce diabetic patient complications.

2. Market the Health and Wellness Services through newspaper ads, our three clinics in Imperial
County, local radio stations, Facebook and Internet Advertising, and in person outreach to Senior
Apartments and Community Centers.

Vo Medical center will provide all equipment to screen and diagnose our patients.



HEFFERNAN, | MEMORIAL

HEALTHCARE' DISTRICT

“Warkling for a Heallhy Calsdor”

HMHD GRANT PROJECT BUDGET FORM FY 2020-2021

Agency Name: Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic

Date: __11/19/2020
PERSONNEL HMHD Other Funding | Total Notes:
District Available to Project Additional
Funding $ Project $ Budget $ information
Salaries — List Position(s)
1. TienVoMD (6) MONS 0 $10,000 $10,000 Vo Medical Center
2. MEDICAL ASST (6) MONS $14,400 0 $14,400 HMHD
3. MEDICAL ASST (6) MONS $14,400 0 $14,400 HMHD
4. PHLEBOTOMIST (6) MONS $14,400 0 $14,400 HMHD
5. MARKETING/OUTREACH $4.000 0 $4.000 HMHD
6. Medical Insurances 0 0 0 Vo Medical Center
7. TOTAL Payroll $4,968 0 $4,968 HMHD
Taxes/Benefit
(11.5%)
SALARIES
Consultant Fees * 0 0
' TOTAL PERSONNEL $52,168 $10,000 $62,168 HMHD: §$52,168
Other Expenses HMHD Other Funding Total Notes:
Funding $ Available to Project Additional
Project $ Budget $ information
1 - Rent 0 $9,500 $9,500 Vo Medical Clinic
2 - Utilities 0 $3,600 $3,600 Vo Medical Clinic
3 - Insurance 0 $2,800 $2,800 Vo Medical Clinic
Miscellaneous — List 0 0 0
Screening Per Patient 0
$260 per Patient @ 600 $156,000 0 $156,000 HMHD
-Comp Blood Panels included 0 0
-EKG Included 0 0
-Chest X-ray Included 0 0
-Covid testing Included 0 0
TOTAL OTHER $ $156,000 $15,900 $171,900 HMHD $171,900

@: total cost per individual when screening patients: Qualified, Provide PE, Comprehensive Labs, X-Rays and

EKG plus FLU Treatments with/out medications: $260.00 per individual

$260 @ 600 patients=$156,000

TOTAL GRANT

HMHD $208,168

VMC $25,900

Total Budget

$234,068

| EXPENSES

;“Specify details/information.




HEFFERNAN |, MEMORIAL

HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

. HMHD ALL BUDGET SOURCES FORM " aiitd&iis

Per the adopted Grants Policy, organizations requesting more than $25,000 or having overall

operating budgets of $500,000 or more are required to include such funding sources on the following
form.

The following information is necessary to provide the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District with a better
understanding of the applicant and program financial resources. Organizations requesting more than
$25,000 or having overall operating budgets of $500,000 or more are required to complete this form.

Total Organization Budget Current Fiscal Year. $ 345,167

Total Requested Project Budget (if different from Organization Budget): $ 234,068

List Major Sources of Revenue List Project Sources of Funding
(Total Organization Budget) (This Request)
Source of | $ Amount | Percent of | One-Time $ Amount | Percentof | One-Time
Funds Total % Funding? Total % Funding?
Federal 0 0% %
State 0 0% %
County* $25,000 7% N %
City* 0 0% %
Other Govt. 0 0% %
Proposed $208,167 61% Y $208,167 61% Y
HMHD
Fees for 0 % %
Service
Nonprofit 0 % Y
Orgs.
Private $50,000 15% N %
Donations
Other (list)
Private $62,000 17% N %
Foundation
% %
TOTAL [$345,167 100% £208,167 61%
Percentage of the Organization's budget spent on administration: 7%
Percentage of the requested Project budget spent on administration: 0%

* City/County o
If the organization currently receives funding from any Cities or Counties, please list jurisdiction,

contract amount and contact information.

“Jurisdiction Level of Funding ($) Contact Name Contact Phone

Imperial County $25,000 Jolene Desert 442-265-1500




Articles of Incorporation
of
Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic

Article L.
The name of the corporation is Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic.
Articlell,

A, This corporation is a nonprofit PUBLIC BENEFIT CORPORATION and is not
organized for the private gain of any person, It is organized under the Nonprofit
Public Benefit Corporation Law for: public and charitable purposes.

B. The specific purpose of the corporation [s to contribute to the overall wellbeing of
our community by providing cost-effective healthcare services.

Article Il

The name and address in the State of California of this corporation’s initial agent for
service of process is:

Tien Vo
1590 South Imperial Avenue
El Centro, CA 92243

Article 1V,
The principal address of the corporation is:

1590 South Imperial Avenue
El Centro, CA 92243

Article V.

A. This corporation is organized and operated exclusively for the specific purposes
set forth in Article 11, and within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3), Internal Revenue

Code.

B. No substantial part of the activities of this corporation shall consist of carrying on
propaganda, ot otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation
shall not participate or Intervene in any political campaign (including the publishing
ot distribution of statements] on behalf of any candidate for public office.

5, /
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C. The property of this corporation is irrevocably dedicated to purposes set forth in
Article 1I(A), and no part of the net income or assets of this corporation shall ever
inure to the benefit of any director, officer or member thereof or to the benefit of

any private person.

D. Upon the dissolution or winding up of the corporation, its assets remaining after
payment, or provisioa for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this corporation
shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation or corporation which is
organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, religious, or
scientific pufposes and which has established its tax-exempt status under Section

501(c){3), Internal Revenue Code.

1 declare [ am the person wﬁo execute’?'this instrument, which exetution is my act
and deed this day of Ou.g ,2017.

A= /
M%rporator

et




BYLAWS OF
Vo Neighbarhood Medica! Clinlc, Inc.
A Callfornia Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

SECTION|
PURPOSE

The purpose of this non-profit corporation is to provide healthcare services to underserved communities.

In the context of its general purpose, Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinics {Heretofore "VNMC") shall seek contributions,
grants and other income, invest and manage its resources, and apply its resources in furtherance of ils mission. VNMC's
resources are irrevocably dedicated to public benefit purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assels of the
Corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person or individual, or to any Diractor or
Officer of the Corporation. On liquidation or dissolution, all properties and assels remaining after payment, or provision for
payment, of all debts and liabilities of the Corporation shall be distributed to a nonprofil fund, foundation, or ¢orporation that
is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes and that has established its exempl slatus under Internal
Revenue Code section 501(c)(3).

No substantial part of the activities of VNMC shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempling to influence
legislation; It shall not participate or intervene in any campaign (including the publication or distribution of statemenits) on
behalf of any candidate for public office; and, it shall not, except in an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or
exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes described above. '

SECTION I
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Duties and Powers

Subject to the provisions and limitations of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law and any other applicable
laws, and subject to any limilations of the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the Corporation’s aclivities and affairs
shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by, or under the direction of, the Board. The Board shall
exercise leadership in determining matters of policy and shall delegate to the corporate officers and/or employed executive
or executives designated by the Board the authority to camy out the day-to-day business affairs of the Comporation, to
implement Board policies, and to supervise the Corporation staff,

Without prejudice to the general powers set forth above, but subject to the same limitations, the Board shall have the
following powers:

(a8} Appoint and remove, at the pleasure of the Board, all corporate officers, agents, and employees; prescribe powers and
duties for lhem as are consistent with the law, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws; fix their compensaticn, if
any; and require from them a bond or other security for faithful service, if deemed appropriate.

(b) Consider the annual budget presented by any designated Board Committee, make such revisions in the budget as it
may deem advisable, and approve a final form of budget.

(c) Require annual written reporis on operations from any Board Committees and from any executive officer and/or staff
members as it deems appropriate.

(d) If appropriate, based upon the nature and scope of the Corporalion's activities, appoint an independent certified public
accounting firm to audit the accounts of the Corporation, and receive such report upon the recommendation of the

designated Board Commitiee.

fe) Borow money and incur indebledness on the Corporation’s behalf and cause to be executed and delivered for the
Corporation’s purposes, in the corporale name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, morigages, pledges,
hypothecations, and other evidences of debt and securities.

() Change the principal office or the principal business office in Califomia from one location to another; cause the
Corporation to be qualified to conduct its activities in any olher state, territory, dependency, or country; and, conduct its

activities in or outside California.
2. Number, Qualifications, and Terms of Directors

The Board shall consist of at least five and not more than 11 Directors, as determined from time to time by resolution
adopted by the Board. Directors of the Board shall be at least 18 years of age, and shall be elected at the annual meeting
of the Board held in December of each year, and al such other times as the Board determines. The term of a Director
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elected at an annual meeting shall commence as of the July 1 and continue until June 30 of the second year thereafter.
Directors may be elected for unlimited successive terms. The term of a Director elected between annual meelings,
whether or not such election occurred as a resull of a vacancy on the Board, shall commence as of the date of his or her
election and continue until June 30 of the second full year after his or her election; however, the Board of Directors shall
have discretion lo address elections, terms, and qualifications base on board majority vote,

3. Restriction on Interested Persons as Directors

No more than 48 percent of the persans senving on the Board may be “Interested Persons.” An Interested Person is: (a)
any person compensated by the Corporation for services rendered to it within the previous 12 months, whether as a full-
lime or part-time employee, independent contractor, or otherwise; (b) any person doing business with the Corporation or
who has a direct or indirect material financial interest in any entily doing business with the Corporation; and (c) any person
whose brother, sister, anceslor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-
law, or father-in-law is such person described in (a) or (b). However, any violation of this paragraph shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of transactions entered into by the Corporation.

4. Vacancies on the Board

A vacancy or vacancies on the Board shall occur in the event of: (a) the death, removal, or resignation of any Director; (b)
the declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the office of a Director who has been convicted of a felony,
declared of unsound mind by a court order, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under
Califomia Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law; or (¢) the increase of the authorized number of Directors, which
increase may be adopted at any time during the year.

Board shall have the discretion to address vacancies A vacancy on the Board occuming between annual meelings need
not be filled, provided that such vacancy does not cause the number of remaining Directors to fall below the authodzed
minimum number of Directors on the Board, However, the Board of Directors shall have discretion to address vacancies
base on board majority vote

5. Resignation of Directors

Except as provided below, any Director may resign by giving written notice to the president, or lo lhe secrelary of lhe
Corporafion. The resignation shall be effeclive when the nolice is given unless it specifies a later time for the resignation to
become effective. If a Director's resignation is effective at a later time, the Board may elecl a successor to take office as of
the date when the resignation becomes effective. Except on notice to the California Attomey General, no Direclor may
resign if the Corporation would be left without a duly elected Director,

6. Removal of Directors

Any Director may be removed, with or without cause, by lhe vote of the majorily of the Direclors of the entire Board at a
special meeting called for thal purpose, or al a regular meeling, provided written notice of that meeting and of the removal
queslions are given to all Directors seven days in advance of such meeling.

Any Director who does not attend three successive Board meetings without excuse may be removed from the Board by
Board resolution at a regular or special meeting by vole of a majonty of the Direclors present, withoul such special written
nolice, unless: (a) he Director requests a leave of absence for a limited period of time, and the leave is approved by the
Directors at a regular or special meeling (if such leave is granted, the number of Board Directors will be reduced by one in
determining whether a quorum is or is not present); or (b) the Director suffers from an illness or disabilily that prevents him
or her from attending meetings and the Board by resolution waives the removal procedure of this subseclion,

7. Meetings of the Board

Meetings of the Board shall be held at any place within or outside California that has been designated by resolullon of the
Board or in the nolice of the meeting ar, if not so designated, at the principal office of the Corporation. Voling by proxy

shall not be allowed.



8. Annual, Regular and Special Mestings

Each year the Board shall hold an annual meeling in December for purposes of organization, election of Directors, election
of officers, and transaction of other business. Other general meelings of the Board may be held without nolice at such
lime and place as the Board may fix from ime lo time, provided that regular meelings shall be held at least quarterly,
including the annual meeting. Special meelings of the Board may be called at any time for any purpose by the president,
any vice president, the secretary, the treasurer, or any two Direclors.

9. Notice of Special Meetings

Notice of the lime and place of special meelings shall be given to each Direclor by: (a) personal delivery of written natice;
(b) telephone, including a voice messaging system or other system or technology designed to record and communicate
messages, either directly to the Director or to a person al the Director's office or home, who would reasonably be expected
to communicate that nolice promptly to the Director; (c) electronic mail: (d) other electronic means; or (&) facsimile. All
such nofices shall be given or senl fo the Direclor's address, email address, lelephone number, or other communication
number as shown on the Corporation's records,

Notices given by personal delivery, telephone, or elecironic mail shall be delivered, telephoned, or sent, respectively, at
least 48 hours before the time set for the meeting.

The nolice shall state the time of the meeting and the place, it the place is other than the Corporation’s principal office. The
notice need not specify the purpose of the meeling unless required by these Bylaws.

10. Quorum

A majority of the Directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business except adjournment.
Every aclion laken or decision made by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is
present shall be an act of the Board, subject to the more stringent provisions of the Califomia Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law, including, without limitation, those provisions relating to: (a) approval of contracts or transactions in which
a Director has a direct or indirect material financial interest; (b) approval of certain transaclions between corporations
having cammon directorships; and (c) indemnification of Directors. A meeling at which a quorum Is initially present may
conlinue to transact business, despite the withdrawal of some Directors from that meeting, if any action taken or decision
made is approved by al least a majorily of the required quorum for that mesting.

11. Waiver of Notice

Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver of nolice, a
written consent to the holding of the meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the meeling, The waiver of noltice or consent
need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate
records or made a part of the minutes of the meetings. Notice of a meeling need not be given 1o any Direclor who atlends
the meeting and who, before or at the beginning of the meeting, does nat protest the lack of notice to him or her.

12. Action Without a Meeting

Any action that the Board is required or permitted to take may be taken without a meeling if all Board Directors consent in
writing lo the aclion; provided, however, that the consent of any Direclor who has a material financial interest in a
transaclion to which the Corporalion is a party and who is an “interested director” as defined in Corporalions Code section
5233 shall not be required for approval of that transaction. Such action by writlen consent shall have the same force and
effect as any other validly approved action of the Board. All such consents shall be filed with the minutes of the
proceedings of the Board.

13. Compensation and Reimbursement

Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as Directors; however, they may receive reimbursement of
expenses as the Board deems just and reasonable,

SECTION Mt
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

1. Board Committees.

The Board shall have committees as the Board from time o lime determines. The Board may eslablish Standing
Committees and/or Ad Hoc Committees. Any Standing Committees shall be established, modified or terminated from time
to time by the resolution of the Board, and ordinarily will assume continuing respensibilities. Standing Committees shall be
comprised of Board Direclors. Ad hoc Committees may be established at any time by the Board to serve at the pleasure of
the Board, and may be comprised of members who are not Directors. Appointments of persons lo committees of the
Board shall by determined by the Board upon recommendation of the President. Each committee shall have the authority
granted to it by the Board, except that no committee may do the following: (a) fill vacancies on the Board; (b) amend or
repeal Bylaws, or adopt new Bylaws; (c) amend or repeal any resolution of the Board that by its express terms is not so
amendable or repealable; or (d) approve any contract or transaction to which the Corporation Is a party and In which one or
more of its Directors has a material financial interest, except pursuant to special approval as provided in Corporations
Code section 5233.

The Board may from lime to lime create advisory, support, auxiliary, or ather committees or groups as it deems appropriate
ta carry out the mission of VNMC, and may appoint persons to serve on such groups who are Directors or non-Direclors,
but such groups shall not be deemed committees of lhe Board and shall not exercise any powers of the Board.

2. Executive Committee

The Board may appoint an Executive Commiltee consisting of the officers of the Corporation, and others as the Board
determines. Non-Board persons may not serve on an Executive Committee. An Execulive Committee shall be
responsible for recommending program, budget, finance, and personnel policies of the Board, and for reviewing, reporting
and recommending actions regarding: (a) VNMC mission, values and vision, and (b) providing a forum for Board strategic
planning and problem-solving. Except as expressly provided in these Bylaws or resolution of the Board, an Executive
Committee will have all the authority of the Board between meetings of the Board, a review of actions taken by the
Executive Committee shall be presenied for discussion and possible action by the Board at its following Board meeting.

3. Governance Committee

The Governance Committee shall be responsible for: (a) recruiting, screening, nominating and orienting new Board
Directors; (b) reviewing Director participation and attendance, and making recommendations for reeleclion for succeeding
terms; (c) preparing the slale of officers for presentation al the annual Board meeling; (d) establishing an annual Director
development and Iraining schedule; and (e ) the program for famiilarizing the Board with the corporation's program
operalions, methods and results. The Chairperson of the Governance Committee shall be elected each year at the annual
meeting of the Board, upon nomination of the Governance Committee. The Governance Committee shall comply with any
written Process for Approval of New Board Directors adopted by the Board.

4. Fund Development Committee

The Fund Development Committee shall be responsible for: (a) establishing annual fund development plans and goals; (b)
identifying and seeking grant funding from appropriate grant-making foundations and governmentlal agencies; (c)
identifying, acquiring and retaining donors; (d) planning, supervising and conducting fund raising activilies; (e) working
with, fostering the development of, and overseeing support groups for the organization, and (f) such other fund
development as appropriate.

S. Planning Committee
The Planning Committee shall be responsible for reviewing, reporling and recommending actions regarding: (a) the

organization's mission, values and vision; (b) facility development and expansion planning; (c) services provided, facilities
utilizalion, lrends and results; (d) community needs, market trends, and potential new services; (e) idenlifying potential
community partner connections and program resources; and (f) providing a forum for Board strategic planning and problem

salving.
6. Finance Committee

The Finance Committee shall be responsible for reviewing all financial matters of the corporation and making
recommendations to the Executive Commitiee as it deems appropriate. It shall regularly review financial policies,
praclices, reports, budgets, and all olher matters affecting the finances of the corporation and its financial reports to the
Board. The Finance Commiltee shall review the annual budget, make recommended changes as appropriate, and forward
it to the Executive Commitiee with a recommendation for action. The Finance Committee shall be comprised of the
Treasurer and at least two additional Board members.



7. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee: (a) shall recommend o the Board the retention and/or termination of the independent auditor; (b)
may negoliate the compensation of the auditor on behalf of the Board; (c) shall confer with the independen! auditor to
satisfy its committee members that the financial affairs of the organizalion are in order, (d) shall review and determine
whether to accept the audit; and (e) shall approve performance of any non-audit services by the audiling firm. The audit
committee may include non-board members, and may include members of the committee with corporate finance authority,

including top management, or any person who has a malerial financial interest in any entity doing business with the
organization.

8. Meetings and Action of Committees

Meetings and actions of committees of the Board shall be governed by, held, and taken under the provisions of these
Bylaws concerning meelings and other Board aclions, except that the time for general meelings of such committees and
the calling of special meetings of such commitlees may be sel either by Board resolution or, if none, by resolution of the
committee. Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records. The Board may adopt
rules for the govemance of any committee provided the rules are consistent with these Bylaws. If the Board has not
adopled rules, the committee may do so.

SECTION IV
MEMBERS

1. Regular Members

VNMC hall have no voting members within the meaning of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law, Any matier requiring
action by members under the Nonprofit Carporation Law shall be performed by the Corporation's Board of Directors.

2. Advisory and Honorary Members

Persons may be elected as honorary or advisory members by majorily vote of the Board at any regular meeling. Persons
elected as honorary members shall be those who have contributed distinguished service to VNMC or lo its mission.
Persans elected as advisory members shall be lhose who, because of thelr special expertise or position in the community,
can assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities, Honorary and advisory members shall serve without Board vole.
Honorary members shall serve as lang as they may desire, unless removed by vote of two-thirds of the Direéclors then in
office for cause as they deem sufficient. Advisory members shall serve for a three-year term and are subject to re-election
for an indefinite number of three year terms. There is no limit on the number of advisory or hanorary members.

SECTION V
OFFICERS

1

1. Officers

The officers of the Corporation shall be a president, vice president, a secretary, and a treasurer, The Corporation, al the
Board's discretion, may also have a chalrperson, one or more vice presidents, one of more assistant secretaries, and/or
one or more assistant treasurers. In addition, the Board may appoint a Chief Executive Officer or Execulive Director, with
such responsibilities, authority and status as the Board may determine. Any number of offices may be held concurrently by
the same person, except thal nelther the: secretary nor the treasurer may serve concurrently as the president,

2, Election of Officers

The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board at its annual meeting to serve for two year commencing on
July 1 and terminating on the following June 30, or until their successors are elacted, whichever is later in time. Officers

may serve unlimited successive terms.

3. Appointment of Other Officers

The Board may appoint and authorize the president or another officer, to appoint any other officers that the Carporation
may require. Each appointed officer shall have the title and authority, held office for the period, and perform the duties

specified in the Bylaws or established by the Board,

4. Removal of Officers

Without prejudice to the rights of any officer under an employment contract, the Board may remove any officer with or
without cause. An officer who was not chosen by the Board may be removed by any other officer an whom the Board

confers the power of removal.
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5. Resignation of Officers

Any officer may resign at any time by giving wiitten notice to the Board, The resignation shall take effect on the date the
notice is received, or at any later time specified in the notice. Unless otherwise specified in the nolice, the resignation
need not be accepted to be effective. Any resignation shall be without prejudice lo any rights of the Corporation under any
contract to which the officer Is a party.

6. Vacancies in Office

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled as
follows: (a) in the case of the president, secretary, or lreasurer, the Board shall al the next regular, or at a duly noticed
special meeling, elect a replacement to serve a term commencing upon election and terminating on the following June 30;
or (b} in the case of all other officers, |he Board may elect a replacement or defer the election to the next annual meeting.

7. Chairperson of the Board

The organization may, bul is not required o, elect a chairperson of the Board, who shall preside at Board meetings and
shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as the Board may assign from time to time.

8. President

The president shall be the general manager of the Corporation and shall help supervise and coordinate the Corporation's
aclivities and affairs, subject to the direction of the Board, The president shall preside at all Board meelings (unless a
chaifperson has been elected). The president shall have such other powers and duties as the Board or the Bylaws may
require.

9. Vice Presidents

If the president is absent or disabled, the vice presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board, or, if not
ranked, a vice president designated by the Board, shall perform all duties of the president. When so acling, a vice
president shall have all powers of and be subject to all restrictions on the president. The vice presidenls shall have such
other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or the Bylaws may require.

10. Secretary

The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the Corporation's principal office or such other place as the Board may
direct, a book of minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and actions of the Board, and of committees of the Board. The
minutes of meelings shall include the lime and place that the meeting was held; whether the meeling was annual, general,
or special, and, if special, how authorized; the notice given; and the names of persons present at Board and committee

meetings.

The secretary shall keep or cause ta be kept, at the principal California office, a copy of the Articles of Incorporation and
Bylaws, as amended to date.

The secretary shall give, or cause lo be given, notice of all megtings of the Board, and of committees of the Board that
these Bylaws require to be given. The secretary shall keep the corporate seal, if any, in safe custody and shall have such
other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or the Bylaws may require.

11. Treasurer

The treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and accounts of
the Corporation's properties and transactions. The treasurer shall send or cause lo be given to the Directors such financial
statements and reports as are required to be given by law, by these Bylaws, or by the Board. The books of account shall
be open to inspection by any Direclor at all reasonable times.

The treasurer shall: (a) deposit, or cause to be deposiled, all money and other valuables in the name and to the credit of
the Carporation with such depositories as the Board may designate; (b) disburse the Corporation's funds as (he Board may
order; (c) render to the president and the Board, when requested, an accounl of all transactions and of the financial
condition of the Corporation; and (d) have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or the Bylaws

may require.

SECTION VI
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

1. Prohibited Transactions

No Director of the Corporation nor any other corporation, firm, assaciation, or other enlity in which one or more of the
Corporation's Directors are directors or have a material financial interest, shall be interested, direclly or indirectly, in any
contract or transaction with Ihe Corporalion, unless: (a) the material facts regarding that Director's financial interest in such
contract or ransaction, or regarding such comman directorship, officership, or financial interest, are fully disclosed in good
faith and noted in the minutes, or are known to all Directors of the Board prior to the Board's consideration of such contract
or lransaclion; (b) such contract or transaclion is authorized in goad faith by a majority of the Board by a vote sufficient for
that purpose without counting the votes of the interested Directors: (¢) before authorizing or approving the transaction, the
Board considers and in good faith decides after reasonable investigation that the Corporation could not obtain a more
advantageous arrangemenl with reasonable efiort under the circumstances; and (d) the Corporation for its own benefit
enters inlo the transaction, which is fair and reasonable to the Corporation at the time the transaction is entered into.
These provisions shall constitute the Conflicts of Interests Poiicy of the Corporation, which may be amplified by additional
policies adopted from time to time by the Board.

2. Prohibition against Loans

The Corporalion shall not lend any money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director or officer without the
approval of the California Atterney General; provided, however, that the Corporation may advance money to a Director or
officer of the Corporalion for expenses reasonably anticipated lo be incurred in the performance of his or her duties if that
Director or officer would be entitled to reimbursement for such expenses by the Cerporation,

SECTION Vil
INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporalion shall indemnify its Directors, officers, employees, and other persons
described in Corporations Code section 5238(a) including persons formerly occupying any such positions, against all
expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts aclually and reasonably incurred by them in conneclion with
any “proceeding,” as that lerm is used in thal seclion, and including an aclion by or in the right of the Corporation, by
reasen of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that section. “Expenses,” as used in this bylaw, shall
have lhe same meaning as in that section of the Corporations Code.

On written request to the Board by any person seeking indemnification under Corporations Cade section 5238(b) or
seclion 5238(c), the Board shall promptly decide under Corporalions Code section 5238(e) whether the applicable
standard of conduct set forth In Corporations Code section 5238(b) or section 5238(c) has been met and, if so, the Board
shall authorize Indemnification.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise determined by the Board in a specific inslance, expenses
incurred by a person seeking indemnification under these Bylaws in defending any proceeding covered by those Code
sections shall be advanced by the Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on receipt by the Corporation of
an undertaking by or on behalf of thal person that the advance will be repaid unless il is ullimately found Ihat the person is
entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for those expenses,

The Corporation shall have the right, and shall use its best efforts, to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of its
officers, Directors, employees, and other agents, to cover any liability asserted against or incurred by any officer, Director,
employee, or agent in such capacity or arising from the officer's, Director’s, employee's, or agent's status as such.

SECTION Vil
GENERAL

1. Maintenance of Carporate Records

The Corporation shall keep the following: (a) adequate and correct books and records of account; (b) written minutes of the
proceedings of the Board and its committees of the Board; and (c) a record of each Board Director's name, address,
lelephone numbers, email address, and similar information.

2. Director's Right to Inspect

Every Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect the Corporation's books, records, documents

of_ every kind, physical properties, and the records of any subsidiary, The inspectian may be made in person or by the
Director's agent or attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents.



3. Execution of Contracts

The Board, excepl as these Bylaws otherwise provide, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into
any contract or to execule any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Corporation. Such authorily may be general or
confined to specific instances. Unless specifically authorized by the Board in writing, no officer, agent or employee shall
have any power or authority lo bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit, or to render it
liable for any purpose or to any amaunt beyond the limits or categories of the items set forth in the previously approved

annual budget.
4. Compliance with Private Foundation Regulations

In the event the Corporalion is ever determined by IRS o be a private foundation, it shall distribute its Income for each
taxable year at such lime and in such manner as not to become subject to the tax on undistributed income imposed by
Internal Revenue Code section 4942, shall not engage in any act of self-dealing as defined in Internal Revenue Code
seclion 4941(d), shall not retain any excess business holdings as defined in Internal Revenue Code seclion 4843(c), shall
not make any investments in a manner as to subject il to lax under Intemal Revenue Code seclion 4944, and shall not
make any taxable expenditures as defined in Intemal Revenue Code section 4945(d).

5. Principal Office

The principal office for the transaction of the activities and affairs of VNMC shall be located at 222 E. Cole Bivd Calexico,
Ca 92243). The Board may change the location of the principal office. Any such change of location must be noted by the
secrelary on these Bylaws opposite lhis seclion; alternalively, this section may be amended lo state the new location,

The Board may at any time establish branch or subordinate offices at any place or places where the Corporation is
qualified to conduct its activities,

6. Construction

The general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law shall govemn the
Corporation, and unless the context fequires otherwise, the interpretation of these Bylaws.

A stated gender includes the masculine, ferninine and neuter: the singular includes the piural and the plural includes the
singular; and the term “person” includes both a legal entity and a natural person.

7. Parliamentary Authority

Robert's Rules of Order, as revised from fime to time, shall constitute the ruling authority in all cases in which they are not
inconsistent with these Bylaws or with California law.

8. Amendment of Bylaws

The Board may adopt, amend, or repeal any Bylaw by a two-thirds vote of the entire Board, which vole may be: (a) at an
annual, regular or special meeling, provided that wrilten notice of that meeling and of the Bylaw matter is given to all
Directors seven days in advance of such meeting; or (b} by written approval by email, overnight courier or the US Postal
Seyvice, to lhe extent expressly permitted by California law,

Whenever an amendment or a new Bylaw is adopted, it shall be inserted in the minute book of the Board with the original
Bylaws. If any Bylaw is repealed, {he fact of the repeal with the date of the meeling at which the repeal was enacted or
rewritten shall be stated in the minule book.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

| certify that | am (he duly elected and acting Secretary of Vo Neighborhood Medical Clinic, Inc., a California nonprofit

public benefit corporation, and thal these Bylaws, consisting of 8 pageyyg&m s pfdune 3, 2020.
/ —

(~ % Secretary




INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

Date: NOV 2] Z@]? B2-2368009

DLN:
17053249307027
VO NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH CLINIC Contact Person:
C/0 TIEN vO MITCHELL P STEELE ID# 31360
1590 5 IMPERIAL AVE Contact Telephone Number:
EL CENTRO, CA 92243 {877) 829-ss500

Accounting Period Ending:
December 31
Public Charity Status:
170(b) (1) (A) (vi)
Form 990/990-E2Z/990-N Required:
Yes
Effective Date of Exemption:
August 10, 2017
Contribution Deductibility:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

We're pleased to tell You we determined you're exempt from federal income tax
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c) (3). Donors can deduct
contributions they make to You under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified
Lo receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under
Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your

exempt status. Please keep it for your records.

3) are further classified as
We determined youire a public
of this letter.

Organizations exempt undey IRC Section 501 (c) (
either public charities or private foundations.
Ccharity under the IRC Section listed at the top

r that you're reguired to file Form

If we indicated at the top of this lette
e required to file an annual

$90/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you'r
information return (Form 990 or Form 9%0-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990-N,

the e-Postcard). If you don't file a reguired return or notice for three

consecutive years, your exempt status will be avtomatically revoked.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the

enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar
to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501 (c) (3) Public Charities,
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements.

coPY

Letter 947



VO NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH CLINTC

Sincerely,
DT st AL,

Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Lettexr 947
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LU ET VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC

11/20/20
Accrual Basis

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
CHASE 9967

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
Contributions and Grants

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Llabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilitles
Legal and Professional Fee
Total Other Current Liabilitles
Total Current Liabilitles
Total Llabilities
Equity
Retalned Earnings
Net iIncome

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Balance Sheet
N o\ﬂz'b %November 20, 2020
_’

21,403.61
21,403.61

30,000.00

———

30,000.00

51,403.61
51,408.61

3,400.00
3,400.00
3,400.00

3,400.00

38,601.24
8,402.37
48,003.61

51,403.61

Page 1 of 1



11:04 A VO NEIGHBORHOOD MEDICAL CLINIC

Profit & Loss
Janugpy,1 throygh November 20, 2020

11/20/20
Accrual Basis

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Contribution and Grant
Total Income
Expense
Business Licenses and Permits
Donation
Legal and Professional Fees
Medlcal Records and Supplies
Office Expense
Security Expense
Taxes
FTB
Total Taxes
Utilities
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Incoms
Net Income

64,370.50
64,370.50

2,663.00
27,000.00
9,724,70
5,100.00
1,018.00
650.00

50.00
50.00
8,762.43
54,968.13

_—
9,402.37

o
—

Page 1 of 1



EXHIBIT G

Grant Agreement with Rosas Plan Food



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT AND ROSA’S PLANE FOOD INC.
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Hefferrian Memorial Healthcare District, a
healthcare district organized under California Health and Safety Code section 32000,
(“Heffernan”) and ROSA’S PLANE FOOD INC., (“ROSA’S PLANE FOOD "), a corporation organized
under the laws of the State of California and made effective as of July 1, 2021 under the terms
of this Grant Agreement

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Heffernan is desirous of promoting and assisting wellness and prevention programs
and to service providers and organizations for the maintenance of good physical and mental
health in the communities served by Heffernan, and

WHEREAS, ROSA’S PLANE FOOD is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of
California and has established and designed and provides Home Delivered Meals in the City of
Calexico and within Heffernan’s district. ROSA’S PLANE FOOD seeks to provide Home
Delivered Meals for seniors during the term of this agreement to individuals in Heffernan’s
district area at no cost to the recipients.

WHEREAS, ROSA’S PLANE FOOD wishes to provide its services to residents of the Heffernan
Memorial Healthcare District:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD shall provide the services under the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD grant
application submitted for grant funding on June 23, 2021, which is incorporated by
reference into this Agreement as though set forth herein, for participants residing within

. the boundaries of the Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District. The meals will be provided
to Calexico (and HMHD) residents who are seniors 60 years or older. This direct financial
assistance by Heffernan is to allow the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD program participants to receive
the services provided by the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD program free and at no cost.

2. COMPENSATION

Subject to and under the term and provisions of the Agreement, Heffernan agrees to fund
the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD program for the mutually agreed upon services, for $150,000.00
for the program commencing on July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022, payable in monthly



installments. The Agreement provides that Rosa’s Plane Food will provide 75 meals per day
delivered 5 times per week at a cost of $9.00 per meal. All meals served will be approved
by a certified nutritionist. The monthly payments will be paid at the end of each month of
service upon submittal of an itemized invoice of the services provided during the month.
Heffernan’s accountant will review each monthly invoice submitted to determine the
expenditures are proper and allowable under the Agreement. Heffernan reserves the right
to deny any expenditure deemed not compliant with the terms of this Agreement.
Activities and programs sponsored by the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD are proper expenditures of
these grant funds. Proper accounting practices and procedures shall identify fund
expenditures by ROSA’S PLANE FOOD in direct implementation of the program indentified
in this agreement. :

3. RECORDS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD shall provide monthly financial reports about these grant funds and a
Profit and Loss financial statement to Heffernan within 30 days of the close of the funding
month and 30 days after the funding termination date of this agreement. Upon reasonable
and written request by Heffernan, during the term of this agreement, financial information
about this allocation and funding shall be reviewed with Heffernan or its designated
representative.

4, TERM OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION

This agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2021, and shall automatically terminate on
June 30, 2022, Heffernan reserves the right to terminate this agreement by giving ROSA’S
PLANE FOOD 30 day notice without cause. In the event either party shall materially breach’
its obligations under this Agreement and shall fail to correct or cure such breach within ten
(ten) days after written notice and demand for cure, then the other party may upon five day
written notice, terminate this Agreement. ‘

5.. REPORTS

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD shall submit written activity reports, within 30 days of the close of the
funding month, to the Heffernan Board. If requested by the Heffernan Board, a
presentation to the Heffernan Board relating to services outlined and the activities
undertaken as specified in this agreement shall be made. The report shall detail ROSA’S
PLANE FOOD services and its activities during the monthly reporting period.

Within thirty days (30} of the close or termination of this Agreement, ROSA’S PLANE FOOD
shall submit to Heffernan an expenditure report with a detailed accounting of all
expenditures related to services provided for under this Agreement.



6. INDEMNIFICATION

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD agrees to defend and hold Heffernan and all its officers, agents,
employees, and representatives harmless against any claims brought for or because of
personal injury, including death, claims of breach of confidentiality, or business and
property damage, which may arise from the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD willful or negligent acts,
errors or omissions under this agreement. ROSA’S PLANE FOOD agrees to defend and
indemnify Heffernan and its officers, agents, employees, and representatives from any suits
or actions at law or equity for damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, from
ROSA’S PLANE FOOD wiliful or negligent act, errors or omissions.

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD agrees to pay HEFFERNAN's attorney’s fees and costs if suit or
arbitration is initiated by HEFFERNAN to enforce its rights under this agreement.

7. INSURANCE

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD shall, throughout the duration of the Agreement, maintain
comprehensive general liability and property damage insurance covering all operations of
ROSA’S PLANE FOQD , its agents and employees, including but not limited to premises and
automobile insurance coverage for all vehicles used to deliver meals, with minimum
coverage of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limits. The policy shall name
Heffernan, inclusive of each of its officers and employees, as an additional insured, and a
Certificate of Insurance shall be furnished to Heffernan at 601 Heber Avenue, Célexic’b, CA
92231. Said policy or policies shall provide thirty-day (30) notice to Heffernan of
cancellation or of a material change. ROSA’S PLANE FOOD shall also carry workers
compensation insurance in the required statutory amount, evidence of which is to be
furnished to Heffernan in a Certificate of Insurarice.’ All such policies shall be in a form
satisfactory to Heffernan’s General Counsel.

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The parties agree that ROSA’S PLANE FOOD and alf of its employees are independent
contractors and shall not be deemed an employee or employees of Heffernan, nor shall any
representative or employee of the ROSA’S PLANE FOOD represent or imply directly or
indirectly that he or she represents or may speak for or bind Heffernan.



9. NOTICES

(a) Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, or by depositing it
in a U.S. Mail deposit box with the postage thereon prepaid, and addressed to the party
at the address set forth below:

Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
601 Heber Avenue
Calexico, CA 92231

Rosa’s Plane Food Inc.
445 S, Fifth Street’
Calexico, CA 92231

(b} Any natice given shall be deemed effective with personal delivery, upon receipt thereof
or with mailing, at the moment of deposit in the course of transmission with the United
States Postal Service, except for a notice of termination which shall be effective 3 days
following deposit with the United States Postal Service.

10. ASSIGNMENT

This is a services contract for unique services. Neither ROSA'S PLANE FOOD nor Heffernan
may assign or transfer any rights or obligations arising from this Agreement, or any part
thereof, without prior written consent of the other party.

11, AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing dul,y executed by each
party.

12. INTEGRATION

This writing constitutes the entire and complete Agreement between the parties relative to
the subject. No party relies upon any warranty or representation, express or implied not
specifically set forth herein.

13. WAIVER

Waiver of a breach or default under this Agreement shall not constitute a continuing waiver
of a later breach of the same or any other provision under this Agreement,



14, SEVERABILITY

If any term or portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provnsnons of the
Agreement shall continue in full force and affect. '

15. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE

This Agreement and all matters relating to it shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California and any action brought relating to thlS Agreement shall be held exclusnvely ina
state court in the County of Imperial. ‘

16. EXECUTION

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute the
same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one copy shall
have been signed by both parties. In approving this Agreement, it shail not be necessary to
produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

17. AUTHORITY TO ENTER AGREEMENT

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business and to
execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement. Each party warrants that the individuals who
have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right and authority to make this
Agreement and to bind each respective party.

18. PROHIBITED INTERESTS

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD maintains and warrants it has not employed nor retained any
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for ROSA’S PLANE
FOOD, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, ROSA’S PLANE FOOD warrants it has
not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other that a bona fide employee
working solely for ROSA’S PLANE FOOD , any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee,
gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this
Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty Heffernan may rescind this Agreement
without liability. For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer, or employee of
Heffernan, during the term of his or her service with Heffernan, shall have any direct
interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising
there from.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer, or employee of County,
during the term of his or her service with County, shall have any direct interest in this
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising there from.



19. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

ROSA’S PLANE FOOD represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not
discriminate against any subcontractor, employee, or applicant for employment because of
race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex, or age. Such non-discrimination
shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading,
demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertizing, Iayoff or termination.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on

July _t4 2021

Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District

BY: (. gL S, zm\,‘, e
j P
Gloria Grijalva, President, Heffrnan Memorial Healthcare District

ff

ﬂ/l

Vivian Sanchez
Rosa’s Plane Food Inc.

July 2021

Attachment of ROSA’S PLANE FOQD ’s funding request dated June 23, 2021, is attached hereto and
made a part of this Grant Agreement as though fully set forth herein including the Programs
Timeline; Costs and Project Description of Services to be provided.



HEFFERNAN MEMORIAL

HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

February 1, 2021
Rosa’s Plane Food Inc.

445 S. Imperial Ave. RECENED
Calexico, CA 92231 s

FEB 2 2 2091
Re: Approval of Grant Application Funding Request 'mpfj’\,_.*"%unry

Dear Rosa’s Plane Food Inc.:

After careful consideration, it is our pleasure to inform you that the request for
grant funding for your program has been approved! Heffernan Memorial is very
committed to the services and goals your program will be providing and therefore
wish your organization the best of luck and success!

Heffernan Memorial will need to schedule a meeting with your representative to
finalize the contract between our organizations. Please contact Tomas Virgen at
the District Office at your earliest convenience for this purpose.

Sincerely,
e

Gloria Grijalva, President
Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
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Proposal for Meals / Nutrition Program ' November 19, 2020.

For Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District
RFP: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 2020-2021
601 Heber Avenue.

Calexico California 92231

Applicant:

Rosa's Plane Food Inc.
445 S. Imperial Avenue
Calexico California 92231
Phone: 760.890.8860

In reference to the Request for Proposals posted in your official website under
Meals/Nutrition Program needs for the community of Calexico.

Rosa’s Plane Food Inc., is pleased to submit this proposal for services to support and
help Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District efforts to make health care more
accessible and affordable, especially to underserved residents, delivery of health-
related services to high-risk/special needs populations. At Rosas'’s Plane Food we
believe that being Healthy starts with a nutritious meal.

Since 1988, Rosas Plane Food have been providing delicious and nutritious meals to
Calexico and Imperial Valley. We are famous for cooking homemade style from scratch,
every dish is prepared with fresh and natural ingredients.

For more than 32 years, Rosas Plane Food has been a very active restaurant in our
city, participating in community events and donating food to schools, non-profit
organizations and homeless people.

Because of the Covid-19 crisis and the closure of places to deliver meals to
underserved seniors in Calexico (Community Center), the Imperial County Agency of
Aging (AAA) contacted us to help them cook and deliver hot meals to senior residents of
Calexico. Since April 6, 2020, we have been providing meals to 60 persons 7 times a
week. The list started to grow and to the end of June we were delivering to 156 people.

Page 1



THE PROBLEM:

Since the COVID-19 started in Calexico at the end of March 2020, the State
Government ordered the closing of all public facilities, one of them was the Senior
Hall/Community Center. These places were used daily for subsidized meals ($2.50
each), Senior residents of Calexico will go and have a hot meal for free or at discounted
price.

Most of these Seniors live alone and the daily meals provided by AAA using Catholic
Charities food services were part of their diet and budget.

Rosas Plane Food was contacted by AAA to see if we can provide and deliver meals to
these Seniors. The reason was that Catholic Charities does not have all the resources
to feed so many seniors in the Valley and provide the home delivery meals on-time.
They only deliver once a week and provide one hot meal and the rest are frozen meals.

Atter providing all legal paperwork, Rosas Plane food was the only food facility chosen
in Calexico to provide this service including daily home delivery before 10:30 p.m.

The cost per delivered meal paid by AAA is $8.00 including Tax. That does not include
delivery costs like: Gas, Vehicle expenses, additional insurance, hiring delivery staff.

It is very important to mention that we took this project with the mission to help this
vuinerable population during this global health crisis. At Rosa’s Plane Food we believe
that nobody should be hungry and have a decent nutritious meal a day.

When you don't eat, your own health is a risk, especially for older people with limited
mobility, resources and income. When we started the meal delivery program we were
delivering about 168 meals daily, 7 days a week. In August 17, AAA cancelled the
meals delivery program due to lack of funds by the State of California.

The same week the notified us about the closing of the program, they contacted us and
ask for continuing the meal delivery program, but with less participants, they cut 79
seniors from the original list of persons served only 5 days a week..

Even though we do not have a contract with AAA, we are still providing the service on a
daily-basis. We do not know when the program will end or who will take over. As you
know the COVID-19 is getting worse, more people are getting sick and the older
population is more vulnerable.

We feel very sorry for the people that were left out of the program delivery. We don't
know the reasons why AAA took them of the list. We still receive daily call for a few of
the persons to see if we have some leftovers meals and we gladly provide them with
any food we have at that moment. They just need to go to our restaurant and pick the
food.

Page 2



Another issue was that AAA cut the Delivery of meais during Saturday and Sunday.
This created a big problem with the seniors because they expected these meals and
they were not notified by AAA.

PROPOSED SOLUTION:

Rosa's Plane Food Inc., is presenting a viable solution for the underserved senior
population of Calexico that are no longer in the list of daily meals service provided by
AAA. Today, we are serving 134 persons but more cuts are expected this month.

This is why we are asking for assistance to help these persons during these difficult
times. With Heffernan Memorial Healthcare District support will help to ensure that at
least these people will receive a nutritious meal daily.

MEAL DELIVERY SERVICE FOR 40 SENIORS NO LONGER RECEIVING THE
SERVICE:

1.- Provide nutritious meals to underserved 40 seniors that were being provided with the
daily meals program under AAA, and now they are out of the program for lack of funds
since August 2020.

A few of these Seniors go to our restaurant and ask if we have some food for them,
even though they are no longer in the service/delivery list from AAA, but we provide
them with a hot meal to take home at no charge.

MONTHLY COST: January 1 to June 30,2021. 40 meals delivered 5 times per week at
$8.00 per meal.

| Month January | February [ March April May June
Days 21 20 23 22 21 22
Total 840 800 920 880 840 880
meals
Total $6720.00 | $6400.00 | $7360.00 $7040.00 | $6720.00 $7040.00
$8.00
Estimated
Total $41280.00
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Rosa's Plane Food Inc., carries all legal permits by the City of Calexico, Imperial County
and State of California. Business insurance, Health Permits and Food Handling
Certification. The meals we prepare and deliver are verified by a certified nutritionist
from the AAA — Imperial County.

Also, the meals we prepare are based following the nutrition values and special diets
that we specially prepare for the population we served according to the health needs,
like low sodium, low sugar, protein and carbohydrates.

We also want to emphasize that we have a 98% satisfaction rate from the people we
serve. Attached is a list of people that can be contacted to verify the flavor, quality of
meals and delivery service.

Thank you for your consideration to this proposal that will benefit the health of many
underserved residents of Calexico.

[

Sincerely,

) 7 .
NN %‘)
Vivian Salh

Rosa’s Plane Food Inc.
City Business License

Health Department License

List of Clients satisfied clients.
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List of Satisfied Clients tor the Meal Delivery Program: AAA

These persons agreed to be contacted by HMHD to verify the meals quality and the service of
Rosa’s Plane Food.

1.- Jorge y Raquel Nunez - 760-587-0932

2.- Oscar y Maria Pesqueira — 760 910-6524

3.- Rosa y Juan Avina — 760-693-9692

4.- Leopoldo y Ramona Gonzalez — 760-554-0006
5.- David y Maria Camarena — 760-604-8892
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IMPERIAL COUNTY
PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT
‘DIVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Pérmit

_ Tfn‘s is to certify that the facﬂlly shown on this permir has complied wlfh the rules and regulations of this
o‘epartmem and is hereby granted permission to operate the type of facility indicated.

Facr!:ty D # FA0008040

OWNER ON RECORD
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